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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Wuxi Life International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are found on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWmALR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year"”), the Group
recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$57,313,000, representing
an increase of approximately HK$32,820,000 or 134% as compared
with that of approximately HK$24,493,000 in 2023. The revenue of the
Group was derived from continuing operations as follow:

- Developing and marketing of the patented server based
technology and the provision of communications software
platform and software related services (the “Software Platform
Business”);

- Provision of combination of promotion and supply chain
management services which aim to provide a fast and cost
effective channel to link up merchants, platforms and end users
(the “Advertising e-commerce and Supply Chain Management
Services Business”); and

- Sales of a wide spectrum of product categories, mainly including
skin care products, agricultural products, daily necessities, etc. on
the e-commerce platform (the “Sales of Products Business”).

The game publishing, development of mobile game and related
intellectual property and platform, mobile application and data
solutions and provision of IT related solutions (the “Mobile Games
and Applications Business”) was discontinued during the Year and the

business had been disposed of during the Year.

The increment in the Group's revenue was attributed by the increase
in segment revenue from the Software Platform Business by
approximately HK$5,778,000, which recorded a segment revenue of
approximately HK$30,271,000 for the Year as compared with that of
approximately HK$24,493,000 in 2023, and new segment revenue
from the Advertising e-commerce and Supply Chain Management
Services Business and the Sales of Products Business of approximately
HK$12,841,000 and HK$14,201,000 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWmLR 7 M

Cost of Sales

For the Year, the cost of sales of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$23,380,000 (2023: approximately HK$8,851,000), which
represented an increase by approximately 164%, mainly due to the
increase in the cost of new business operation in the PRC for the Year.

Gross Profit

As a result of the aforementioned increase in the total revenue
and increase in cost of sales, gross profit of the Group for the
Year increased by approximately HK$18,291,000 to approximately
HK$33,933,000 (2023: approximately HK$15,642,000).

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$37,842,000 (2023: approximately
HK$22,016,000), which comprised of administrative expenses, research
and development expenses and selling and distribution expenses.
The increase in overall expenses was mainly due to the increase in
staff costs and administrative expenses incurred for the new business
operation in the PRC for the Year.

Finance Costs

Finance costs was approximately HK$334,000 for the Year (2023:
approximately HK$890,000), which mainly comprised of interest on
borrowing from a third party and interest on lease liabilities.

Discontinued operation
Mobile Games and Applications Business was discontinued during the
Year and was disposed of during the Year.

Money lending business was discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2021 and was disposed of to an independent third party on
14 December 2023.

Loss for the Year from discontinued operation was approximately
HK$1,423,000 compared with profit of approximately HK$1,067,000 in
2023, mainly due to the loss on disposal of subsidiaries during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWmALR DM

Loss for the Year

The consolidated net loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year from continuing operations amounted to approximately
HK$4,091,000, compared with a loss of approximately HK$10,402,000
in 2023. The significant change in results was mainly due to (i) the
increase in gross profit as a result of the increase in revenue of
the Software Platform Business; (ii) the significant decrease in the
impairment loss on goodwill; (iii) the significant decrease in the
impairment loss on right-of-use assets and (iv) partly set off by the
increase in administrative and other operating expenses.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

For the Year, the Group focused on three principal businesses, they
are (i) Software Platform Business; (ii) Advertising e-commerce and
Supply Chain Management Services Business and (iii) Sales of Products
Business.

Software Platform Business

During the Year, our project progress gradually returned to normal after
the pass of the impact from COVID-19. In addition, the Hong Kong
Government promulgated the Hong Kong Innovation and Technology
Development Blueprint at the end of 2022 and is determined to allocate
resources for developing Hong Kong into an international information
and technology centre, which are reflected in both the Chief Executive
2023 Policy Address and the 2023-24 Budget. As a result, the Group’s
business has been positively impacted by the gradual recovery of the
economy and the increased investment in technology by the Hong
Kong government, which is considered as the major customer of the
Company.

This segment performed satisfactorily and achieved significant increase
of revenue during the Year. Facing the competition in the fiercely
competitive and ever-changing market, the Group will continue to
put in enough resources to meet the increasingly innovative industry
standards for customer’s demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWmLR 7 M

Advertising e-commerce and Supply Chain Management
Service Business

Recognizing the growing significance of e-commerce platform economy,
the Company has commenced advertising e-commerce and supply
chain management service business during the year. The Company aims
to provide a combination of promotion and supply chain management
services, acts as a cost effective channel to link up merchants, platforms

and end users.

Supply chain management services constitute a comprehensive,
integrated service system covering procurement, inventory management
and logistics distribution, under which the Company is enabled to
reduce its inventory burden, improve its product and capital turnover
rate, and provide fast and accurate delivery services. It is expected
to expand the upstream and downstream industrial chains and make
national presences through digital empowerment of the entire logistics
chain, thus broadening room for profitability in revenue. At the same
time, this system helps small and medium-sized businesses to promote
their products to the platform and have access to a large customer
base.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sales of Products Business

During the Year, the Company commenced the business of sales
of a wide spectrum of product categories, mainly including skin
care products, agricultural products, daily necessities, etc. on the

e-commerce platform.

Discontinued Operation
The Directors, upon reviewed the operation of the Advertising
e-commerce and Supply Chain Management Services Business and Sales
of Products Business in the PRC and assessed their prospect, decided
to discontinue the Mobile Games and Applications Business. The future
operation environment of the Mobile Games and Applications Business
was uncertain. The Directors opined that it was the suitable time for
the Group to concentrate the resources to the operations with better

prospect.

OUTLOOK

2024 has been revolutionary in all tech space and software
development, with several trends shaking up the industry.

Keeping up with these tech stack trends is essential for anyone in the
field, whether a seasoned pro or starting out.

The Group will continue to strengthen its competitiveness and develop
its software platform in the context of the advancement in technology.
The Group will also continue to maintain a long-term relationship with
the existing clients while actively participate in tendering for different
projects with an aim of expanding its customer base as well as securing
more sales orders from existing customers. In addition, the Group will
continue to put in enough resources to meet the increasingly innovative
industry standards for customer’s demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The surge in Big Data adoption is a pivotal trend in Hong Kong's IT
landscape.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

The Group’s main business operations and investments are in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. At 31 December 2024, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$32,897,000 (2023:
approximately HK$3,198,000). Most of the cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group will closely monitor
exchange rate movement and will take appropriate activities to reduce
the exchange risk.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2024, total assets of the Group were approximately
HK$61,745,000 (2023: approximately HK$8,703,000) whereas total
liabilities were approximately HK$37,329,000 (2023: approximately
HK$13,264,000). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as
total liabilities over total assets, was approximately 60% (2023:
approximately 152%) and the current ratio, calculated as current assets
over current liabilities, was approximately 1.70 (2023: approximately
0.73). The Directors will continue to take measures to further improve
the liquidity and gearing position of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant Investment
During the Year, except for the disposal disclosed in note 7, the Group
did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures nor were there material investments
authorised by the Board at the date of this report.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2024, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$120,000,000 divided into 12,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each, of which 381,792,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully
paid.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group consistently adopts a conservative treasury policy during
its development and generally finances its operations and business
development with internally generated resources and equity and/or
debt financing activities in order to maintain a healthy liquidity
position. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
financial position of the Group to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
The Directors consider that the Group had no material foreign exchange

exposure.

Material Risk Factors
Details of the Group’s financial risk and analysis are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Use of Proceeds on Rights Issue

On 15 August 2024, the Company completed a rights issue of
254,528,000 rights shares at a subscription price of HK$0.12 per rights
share on the basis of two (2) rights shares for every one (1) existing
share held by the qualifying Shareholders on the record date of 2
July 2024 (the “Rights Issue”). The net proceeds from the rights issue
after deducting the expenses (the “Net Proceeds”) are approximately
HK$28,885,000.

The intended use of the Net Proceeds is (i) HK$5.0 million for the
further development and optimisation of the advertising e-commerce
platform and the mobile applications; (ii) HK$15.0 million for marketing
and user acquisition strategies; (iii) HK$5.0 million for operational costs
associated with the platform, including server hosting, maintenance,
and customer support; (iv) HK$2.0 million for forming strategic
partnerships and business development and (v) HK$1.88 million will be
used as general working capital of the Group.

Details of which were set forth in the Company’s announcements dated
9 February 2024, 14 February 2024, 2 May 2024, 7 June 2024, 5 July
2024 and 12 August 2024, the circular of the Company dated 9 April
2024 and the prospectus of the Company dated 24 July 2024.

Since the completion of the Rights Issue and up to 31 December 2024,
the Group has utilised approximately HK$1,740,000, representing 6%
of the Net Proceeds, for the originally intended use. As of 31 December
2024, approximately HK$27,145,000, representing approximately 94%
of the Net Proceeds, remains unutilised (the “Unutilised Net Proceeds”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The utilisation of the Net Proceeds as of 31 December 2024 and the ®HE_-_Z_NME+_-_A=+—HBFEXEF
use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds are set out as follows: ENFERBALRARSBMGREEENEH
BRMT:

Utilised Unutilised

Amount Amount Timeframe
Original as of 31 as of 31  for fully Utilized
Intended December December of the Unutilised
Amount 2024 2024 Amount
Bz Bz
—E-mE —E-_MF
t=A t=A XEA
Intended Use of Rat &l SEEH =t+-8 SHEHE
Net Proceeds FENEREZRERR EHALE CHEALE AEALE GAEB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T TET
Development and optimisation E&EFEHFEA K F# 5,000 = 5,000 Intend to use the fund
of the advertising e-commerce  JEFA R LE(L by end of 2026
platform and the mobile BRZZZ R FER
applications HHEES
Marketing and user acquisition ‘& & i P BUR B 15,000 = 15,000 Intend to use the fund
strategies by end of 2026
BR - - AEEH
BHEES
Operational costs associated FAMBEEEERA 5,000 = 5,000 Intend to use the fund
with the platform by end of 2026
BR - - EEH
BHEES
Forming strategic partnerships BV KB B HEERELER 2,000 = 2,000 Intend to use the fund
and business development B by end of 2026
BR - - EEH
BHEES
General working capital —REEES 1,885 1,740 145  Intend to use the fund

by end of 2026
BR T -NERA

PRES
28,885 1,740 27,145
EELEEEREREEAR QA 13

F 32024



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWmLR 7 M

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 71 employees (2023: 55
employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$21,599,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately HK$18,074,000).

The Group's remuneration policy is revised periodically and determined
by reference to market terms, company performance, individual
qualifications and performance, and in accordance with the statutory
requirements of the respective jurisdiction where the employees are
employed.

14 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREBHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and promoting stringent
corporate governance. The principle of the Company’s corporate
governance is to promote effective internal control measures, uphold
a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity
in all aspects of business, to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and to enhance the
transparency and accountability of the Board to shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value and formulate its
business strategies and policies.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had adopted
a code of conduct regarding securities transactions (the “Securities
Dealing Code”) by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company had also made specific enquiry of all Directors and
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its Securities Dealing Code.

The Securities Dealing Code also applies to all relevant employees of
the Company who are likely to be in possession of inside information of
the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing
Code by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) as contained in Appendix
C1 of the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange throughout the
year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”) except the CG
Code provision A.2.1.
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The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and taking
into account any matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in
the agenda while the chief executive officer (the "CEQ") is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

Under the Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company does not have a CEO. The role of CEO is currently
shared by the executive directors, who are collectively responsible
for management of the business operations of the Group. The Board
is of the view that the balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced individuals
who will from time to time discuss issues affecting operations of
the Company and the Group. This arrangement can still enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively. The Company will,
at the time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of the
CEO.

The Board will continue to regularly review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code, and
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them. The
Board recognizes the importance and benefits of conducting regular
evaluation of its performance.

The members of the Board broadly agreed that the Board had operated
satisfactorily. They were also satisfied, in general, with the composition
and effectiveness of the Board.

16 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategy,
and has satisfied itself that the Group’'s culture is aligned. Acting
with integrity and leading by example, the Directors promote the
desired culture to instill and continually reinforce across the Group
the values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly. The Group has
adopted anti-corruption and whistleblowing policy to provide forums
for reporting issues and concerns on any misconduct, and to uphold
business integrity in its operations.

The Group is committed to seeking progress while maintaining
stability and strives to improve operational efficiency and strengthen
the risk control measures. Effective risk control will remain as the
core competitiveness and investment highlight of the Group, while
the Group will strive to extend its business to explore business
opportunities. A healthy corporate culture is important to good
corporate governance, which is crucial for achieving sustainable long-
term success of the Group.

COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight Directors,
of which three are executive Directors (the “ED"), namely Mr. Liu
Guanzhou, Ms. Liu Xingmei and Mr. Choi Pun Lap, two are non-
executive Directors (the “NED"), namely Ms. Li Hui Ling and Ms.
Guan Xiuying, and three are independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"”), namely Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria, Mr. Fu Yan Ming and Mr.
Xia Qiankun. There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship amongst the Directors. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in pages 40 to 44 under the section headed
“Biographies of Directors”.

The Board includes a balanced composition of ED and INEDs so that
there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the
Company and that the current board size is adequate for its present
operations. Each Director keeps abreast of his responsibility as the
Director and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.
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A training was provided for each new Director of the Company after
his/her appointment, to ensure he/she would understand the operation
and business of the Group and be fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations as a Director. During the Year, the newly appointed
Directors Ms. Guan Xiuying and Mr. Xia Qiankun had obtained the
legal advice referred to in Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules on 30
October 2024 and confirmed that they understood their obligations
as a Director. The Group provides briefings to all Directors, so as to
enhance his/her awareness of the relevant GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements as well as the latest developments
in the business of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring
its effectiveness in all aspects of its role for setting its agenda and
taking into account any matters proposed by other directors for
inclusion in the agenda while the CEO is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's business.

Under the CG Code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and
CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company does not have a CEO. The role of CEO is currently
shared by the executive directors, who are collectively responsible
for management of the business operations of the Group. The Board
is of the view that the balance of power and authority is ensured by
the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced individuals
who will from time to time discuss issues affecting operations of
the Company and the Group. This arrangement can still enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve
the Company’s objectives efficiently and effectively. The Company will,
at the time when it thinks fit, arrange for new appointment of the
CEO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The CG Code provision C.1.6 requires that independent non-executive
directors should, among others, attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There is
satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board Committee meetings
and the general meeting during the Reporting Period.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 14
June 2024 and 17 June 2024, Mr. Tai Chi Ho (“Mr. Tai"”) resigned as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
14 June 2024. Following the resignation of Mr. Tai, the Company does
not have at least three independent non-executive Directors under Rule
5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company
does not comprise a minimum of three members under Rule 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of the Company is not
chaired by an independent non-executive Director under Rule 5.34 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the nomination committee of the Company
does not comprise a majority of independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 5.36A of the GEM Listing Rules.

In order to comply with the abovesaid GEM Listing Rules, the Company
identified Mr. Xia Qiankun (“Mr. Xia”) to fill up the abovementioned
vacancy on 27 September 2024, the Company complies with the
requirement under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules that the
Company has at least three independent non-executive Directors.

Immediately following to the changes of composition of the Board
committees with reference to the Company’s announcement dated 4
October 2024, the Company complies with the requirements under (i)
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the Audit Committee comprises
a minimum of three members; (ii) Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules
that the Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent non-
executive Director; and (iii) Rule 5.36A of the GEM Listing Rules that
the Nomination Committee comprises a majority of independent non-
executive Directors.

BUFHTES

CREEATURCIATBIFNTES
(R R HEREAR R RE N E R E
WTR-RBEHN EFEEH EF
EEEARRAAENHEESS AR

e 19 Ry
W

o

ZRAAATDBEHR AT _MWENA+MAE
FZZTE-_NMFEANA+tBZRAE B THL
E(THEE])BARRABLIERITES
BE-S-MFENATHBRER -BELEFT
% RARRWEE D =RBIUIERTEEUF
AGEMLEMRBIES05(NIEZHE KA BIE
REEEVEBREEL =K B AFEGEM
EWARBIES 2862 ME NARETMEESR
WIHEBIIFRATEZETEERARFEGEM
EHRBES3MEZRTE  URARFREE
BEeBRBYEBUIERNTESEKRUTAS
GEM_ETTRBIZE5 36AKZIRE

BET EMRGEMEMRA ARAFR T
FAAZTtEMEERMEE([ExE])
E e AR S GEM ETH AR BJ555.05(1)
BEBARAELEZEZBIYIAITESEH
HE °

EHEFTLZECANIET (TR2HAEARR
BHAZZ-_MNF+AMAZAE) B AR
AIEESF()GEM EMRAIES. 286 AMEZE
ERERAKL=EKEBMEK ZHEE: ()GEM
FHRAIES MG BT INEE AR —BB
VIR TEFEEERE 2B T RGiI)GEME
MHAES3AKREBRIREZEGERABIH
BT ERMERZRE

BELFEREREBRAFR QG 19
F 32024



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREBHRE

During the Reporting Period, at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional accounting or related financial management expertise in
compliance with rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all the INEDs are
independent in accordance with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has put in place mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving
directors access to external independent professional advice from legal
advisers and auditor, as well as the full attendance of all INED at all
the meetings of the Board and its relevant committees held during the
Reporting Period.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.

Terms of Directors and Re-election of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code states that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Each of the ED has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the
then current term. Each of the NED and INED has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years, subject
to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, at every annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which Directors are to retire by rotation. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election thereat.

The Company's Articles of Association also provides that all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Responsibilities and Accountabilities of the Directors
The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company,
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company'’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk

management systems are in place.

All Directors, including NED and INED, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
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The INED are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgment on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual

basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory

requirements.
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All Directors have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the statutory and regulatory requirements and also the business and
market changes to facilitate the performance of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements, and enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices.

All Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors would be arranged
and reading materials on changes and developments to the Group's
business and to the legislative and regulatory environments relating
to the market and the operations of the Group would be provided
to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses. All the
Directors named in the section headed “Board Composition” in this
Corporate Governance Report confirmed that they have complied with
the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ continuous
professional development during the Reporting Period by participating
in appropriate continuous professional development activities, and
reading materials relating to regulatory updates and handouts or
reviewing the papers and circulars sent by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing the risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the management. Each of the Committees is established
with defined written terms of reference which are available on the
Company'’s website and GEM website.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, evaluating the overall effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems, reviewing the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters and ensuring the completeness, accuracy and fairness of
the financial statements, monitoring compliance with statutory and
listing requirements and overseeing the relationship with the external

auditors.

The Audit Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. At least one member has an appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Audit Committee focuses not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and
the legal requirements during the review of the Company’s interim and
annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditor, executive Directors
and senior executives are invited to attend the meetings, if required.
Each of the Audit Committee members has unrestricted access to the
Group's external auditor and the management.

The Audit Committee supervises internal investigation and reviewing
the anti-corruption policy and system and the whistleblowing policy
and systems and other arrangements for employees of the Company
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matters related to
the Company.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Fu Yan Ming, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Xia
Qiankun. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Fu Yan Ming.
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The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet at least twice a year. Three
meetings were held during the Reporting Period. The attendance of

ERZEEHESFRLBITMREHE -BE
e
=]

HARNERIT=ZAGH - EXBEZHEBRE

each member is set out as follows: IR O NNE
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
BERHERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Fu Yan Ming (Chairman)
HRBEE (E/F) 3/3
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
M EL L 3/3
Mr. Xia Qiankun (appointed on 27 September 2024)
EwimiE (RZE-_NFAAZ-+EHEZE) 1/1
Mr. Tai Chin Ho (Chairman) (resigned on 14 June 2024)
BTAELE (EF) (RZZEZNF A THEBERT) 1/1
Summary of works TE#ER

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
financial reporting matters including the quarterly, interim and
annual results, made recommendations to the Board on the terms of
engagement and re-appointment of the external auditor, and reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems, and its other duties in accordance with the Audit

Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the
CG Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee is required, amongst other
things, to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review
the Group's preliminary quarterly results, interim results and annual
financial statements and to monitor the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, internal
audit matters and to review the financial and accounting policies
adopted by the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the terms of remuneration
package payable to Directors and senior management and on the
Company's policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and
senior management.

The model of the Remuneration Committee described in code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the prevailing market conditions,
individual experience, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the Company
and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of the Group’s
affairs. The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Xia Qiankun, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria and
Mr. Fu Yan Ming. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an INED,
Mr. Xia Qiankun.
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The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year. HMZE G EBFHL BT —IREE - &
One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2024. The CEeREE_T_NF+ZA=+—HLt
attendance of each member is set out as follows: FEARIT-REHE-FKREZHEERLHT
U
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE,
REREERY
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIAFHITES
Mr. Xia Qiankun (Chairman) (appointed on 27 September 2024)
Bauwmad (£R) (RZZE_MEAAT+BEZE) 0/0
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
M EZ + 11
Mr. Fu Yan Ming
HRALLE ”n
Mr. Tai Chin Ho (Chairman) (resigned on 14 June 2024)
BTaLs (FF) (RZZE_MFRNATHBEE) 1/1
Summary of works TE#X

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee reviewed RBEHR FHEESCBETFHEZES 2
the remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages i@ﬁﬂzﬁ%%ﬁl EHNAREER Y Miﬂl'ﬁ'ﬁ&%‘%ﬁ‘f
of all the Directors, reviewed and made recommendations to the Board EZE 2 HMF8 M RENRAEZGER

on the remuneration package of the proposed Directors in accordance  ZRITEE 2 HEF

with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

No material matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 23 of the RREHA  MEBBGEM TR A F235 18
GEM Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or approved by the THROFHEMNEAETEELRTHNEZESER
Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Period. L o
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
assisting the Board by developing and formulating relevant procedures
in nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the structure,
size and composition, and the diversity of the Board at least annually
with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy of the Company; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board having
due regard to the Board Diversity Policy; assessing the independence of
INEDs; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors; as
well as to review the Board Diversity Policy and the Board Nomination
Policy (as defined below), as appropriate.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director and two INEDs and, namely Mr. Liu Guanzhou, Ms.
Lam Yuen Man Maria and Mr. Xia Qiankun. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by an ED, Mr. Liu Guanzhou.
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The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
In addition, the Nomination Committee also meets as it is required to
consider nomination related matters. One meeting was held during the

REZBEHEIBFRIBNT //’ZQ% AN
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year ended 31 December 2024. The attendance of each memberisset AZ+—HIFERIT— A @H -STKE 2 H
out as follows: EEAENMAT
Attendance/
eligible to attend
HERE
BEREERY
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Liu Guanzhou (Chairman)
FEMEE (XF) 0/0
Mr. Choi Pun Lap (ceased to be a member on 4 October 2024)
BAYGE (RZE-_METAMNBETHEEKE) 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
N ESy 11
Mr. Xia Qiankun (appointed on 27 September 2024)
Bkt (RZE-_NFAA-+LAEEZE) 0/0

Mr. Tai Chin Ho (Chairman) (resigned on 14 June 2024)
HTHELEE(ER) (RZEWOFXNA+THABET)

Summary of works

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board in light of the Board
Diversity Policy, assessed the independence of INEDs, reviewed and
made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election of
the retiring Directors, reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Policy, and reviewed the appointment of the nominated
Directors and made recommendation to the Board for approval
in accordance with the Nomination Committee’s written terms of

reference.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a Nomination Policy in February 2019 regarding
the nomination, appointment, re-appointment of Directors and the
nomination procedure of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will select candidate for directorship
based on his/her character, integrity, professorial qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience, independence, diversity of the Board,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and such other criteria that are appropriate for the business

and corporate strategy of the Company

For appointment of new Director, the Nomination Committee evaluates
such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. For those qualified
candidates, recommendations are made to the Board. For re-election
of the retiring director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
review the overall contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring Director and the level of participation and performance on
the Board and determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out above. Recommendation are then made to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy regularly

or at any time necessary.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 1 September 2013. A
summary of this policy, together with the measurable objectives set
for implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving
those objectives are disclosed as below.
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The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a
diverse Board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a numbers of measurable aspects including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered with the objective criteria, having due regards for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy annually.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
two INEDs and one executive Director, and thereby to promote critical
review and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
age, length of services, professional background and skills.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
Board Diversity Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Securities Dealing Code, and the Company's compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code states that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of Directors, either in

person or through other electronic means of communication.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. There were 6 Board meetings held during
the Reporting Period.
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held during the

Reporting Period were set out as follows:

BREEEEREHANBT2ESSEHE
EF AT

Attendance/eligible to attend

HERE SERHEERE
Board meeting General meeting
Esggl i N

Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Liu Guanzhou (Chairman)
BIEMEE (ZFF) 6/6 2/2
Ms. Liu Xingmei
FIEE L+ 6/6 2/2
Mr. Choi Pun Lap
BRI KL 6/6 2/2
Non-Executive Directors
FHITES
Ms. Li Hui Ling
REL L 4/4 2/2
Ms. Guan Xiuying?
BRI N/A i F N/AZ 38 A
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
N ESy 4/4 2/2
Mr. Fu Yan Ming
FRAEE 4/4 2/2
Mr. Xia Qiankun?
B 5y 30 5t A2 N/A 3 A N/A 38 A
Mr. Tai Chin Ho'
B LA 1/1 2/2
Notes: et -
1. Mr. Tai Chin Ho has resigned as an INED effective on 15 June 2024. 1. BTHELEEBEBYFATEST A - -0

2. Ms. Guan Xiuying and Mr. Xia Qiankun has been appointed as a

INED, respectively, effective on 27 September 2024.

NED and an

2.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company pursues a continuity-based dividend policy (“Dividend
Policy”) which aims to allow the shareholders to participate in the
Company'’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board should take into account, inter alias,
the Company's operating results, actual and expected financial
performance, retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and members of the Group, the Group's debt to equity ratios,
liquidity position, the Group expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans, any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the Group’s lender, general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group's business and any other factors that the
Board may deem appropriate and relevant.

The Board will review, modify and/or update the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fits and necessary.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (ii) whistleblowing
policy and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to
raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee
about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group. For
further details of the Group’'s anti-corruption and whistleblowing
policy and/or measures, please refer to the section headed “Operating
Practices and Social Investment” of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report separately published on the Company’s website.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such system is to safeguard of the interest of
shareholders and the Group's assets.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. It has been an important duty
of the Board to conduct a review of internal control to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at
any time necessary. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training program and budget. The process use to review its
effectiveness includes identification, evaluation, management measures

and control and review.
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Internal Control

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of the overall
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group over
financial, operational and compliance issues, risk management process,
information systems security, scope and quality of the management’s
monitoring of risks and the effectiveness of financial reporting and
compliance with the Listing Rules. With reference to the announcement
dated 27 June 2025, the Board considers that there are deficiencies
in the existing internal control procedures of the Group. In particular,
the Group didn’t have a proper personnel to handle the accounting
record of revenue. Also, the internal control policy on approving
the agreements are not specific as to the personnel responsible for
reviewing of contracts. To prevent the recurrence of similar incidents,
the Board has replaced the relevant personnel who wrongly interpreted
and recorded the data with a qualified accountant and has hired
additional personnel with proficiency in handling agreements in 2025.
The Group has also engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited as the
internal control auditor to conduct an internal control review and the
internal control review is expected to be completed by September 2025.
The major scopes of the internal control review include, among others,
approval and management of contracts, revenue recognition and
reconciliation, accounts receivable management, accounting record,
inventory management, financial results reporting and publication,
and controls over invoice, chop and authorization signatory. The Board
concluded that except for the deficiencies mentioned above, in general,
the Group had set up a sound control environment and installed
necessary control mechanisms to monitor and correct non-compliance.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of Inside Information
in respect of procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to rule
17.10 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provision
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the related party
transactions, if any, are periodically reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL

REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for each financial period to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statement of the Company
is set out in the section “Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual

report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. The remuneration in respect of audit service and non-
audit service (including professional advice on taxation) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 provided by Fan, Chan & Co. Limited was
HK$1,000,000 and nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
is subject to approval by the Board in accordance with the Articles of
Association and CG Code.

With effect from 1 September 2024, Mr. Hui Hung Kwan (“Mr. Hui")
resigned as the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). Mr. Lee Cheuk Man (“Mr. Lee"”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 1 September 2024 and resigned
as the Company Secretary with effect from 2 May 2025. Following the
resignation of Mr. Lee, Mr. Leung Tze Wai (“Mr. Leung”) was appointed

as the Company Secretary with effect from 2 May 2025.

Neither Mr. Lee nor Mr. Leung is an employee of the Group and Mr.
Choi Pun Lap, the executive Director, is the person whom Mr. Leung
can contact for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

In accordance with rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Hui, Mr.
Lee and Mr. Leung have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

(i)

Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (the “Extraordinary
General Meeting”). The Extraordinary General Meeting shall
also be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the issued share capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Directors or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an Extraordinary General Meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(iij) Send Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company either by
email at inform.8148@gmail.com or by post to the Company’s
Hong Kong head office at Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre,
No. 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Shareholders
can also make enquiries with the Board directly at the general

meetings.

(iii) Putting forward proposals at general meetings

38

the
shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of

Pursuant to the Articles (as amended from time to time),

requisition convene an Extraordinary General Meeting according
to the procedures as set out above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to account to
shareholders and investors for the performance of the Company. All the
shareholders have received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice
of annual general meeting at which Directors are available to answer
questions on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s
activities is provided in its annual report and interim report which are
sent to shareholders and investors. The Company’s announcements,
press releases and publications are published and are also available
on the Stock Exchange website and on the Company’s website at

www.wuxilife.com.hk.

During the Reporting Period, there was not any change in the
Company's constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the
Company'’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange website.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Guanzhou (“Mr. Liu”), aged 43, has been appointed as an
executive Director and chairman of the Board of the Company with
effect from 14 April 2023. He is also a member and the chairman of
the nomination committee.

He has over 14 years of experience in business directory publishing
and strategic consultancy, and over 11 years of experience in digital
marketing and software business, including rich sales channels and
business network in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Mr. Liu is the shareholder and authorised representative of several
private companies which are engaging in electromechanical
equipment, advertising, investment management and brand operation
management. Mr. Liu has been a publisher and strategic consultant.
Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for the general management and business
development in the Greater China.

Ms. Liu Xingmei (“Ms. Liu"”), aged 38, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 30 November 2023.
She has over 8 years of experience in internet micro-business brand
management, and over 3 years of experience in advertising e-commerce
operation and management, including rich sales channels and business
network in the PRC. Ms. Liu has won several awards in the e-commerce
industry. Ms. Liu currently leads an e-commerce team of approximately
20,000 people in the advertising e-commerce business.
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Mr. Choi Pun Lap (“Mr. Choi”), aged 47, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since June 2021.

Mr. Choi has extensive knowledge in corporate finance transactions
in Hong Kong. He is well experienced for working in mergers &
acquisition, analysing financial and market data, responsible for
coordinating and supporting integration planning for acquisitions,
and taking deals through the full process to successful completion.
He is currently an executive director of Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366) and Simplicity Holding
Limited (stock code: 8367), the shares of both are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive director of Sunway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58) and China Smarter
Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1004), the shares of both
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Shanyu Group
Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as Zhao Xian Business
Ecology International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8245), the shares
of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Also, he is a
principal of Absolute Value Business & Asset Valuation Limited which
provides services of valuation, accounting and business solution to
different companies in different industries. In the past, Mr. Choi was a
financial controller of a company which is listed in GEM in 2019 and he
was a senior audit manager in the audit department of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"”) in Hong Kong. He has worked in HLB for
more than ten years from February 2007 to December 2017.

Mr. Choi is a valuation practitioner of International Association of
Certified Valuation Specialists since 2019. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of Certified
Practising Accountants Australia and a member of Chartered Global
Management Accountant. Mr. Choi graduated from Open University
of Hong Kong with a Master of Law (Chinese Business Law) in Hong
Kong in 2017. He obtained a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from
Central Queensland University in Australia in 2003 and further studied
Postgraduate Diploma of Accounting in Monash University in Australia
in 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Li Hui Ling (“Ms. Li”), aged 43, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company since February 2023.

Ms. Li possesses over 19 years of experience in software and digital
marketing and finance related duties. Ms. Li is the founder of
several private companies which are engaging in software business
development, digital marketing business development and website
business development. In the course of her career, Ms. Li has been the
chief marketing officer, the general manger and the chairman of the
board.

Ms. Guan Xiuying (“Ms. Guan”), aged 49, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company since 27 September 2024.

Ms. Guan has years of experience in administration support. She
had been worked as a marketing supervisor in a telecommunications
company, a marketing manager in an e-commerce company and a shop

owner in an e-commerce platform. She is currently a retiree.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria (“Ms. Lam”), aged 55, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2020. She is also member of each of the audit committee,

remuneration committee and nomination committee.

Ms. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director of Century
Group International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2113) and of
Zhejiang United Investment Holding Group Limited (Stock code: 8366)
since 31 December 2024, both are companies listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, and a non-executive director of PanAsialum Holdings
Company Limited (Stock code: 2078), the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, since 1 July 2024. She is also a
company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong Kong
listed company.

Ms. Lam was previously an independent non-executive director of
China Come Ride New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as KNK
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8039), the shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, until 9 January 2024.
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Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master degree in Management from
the Macquarie University and a master degree in Applied Psychology
from City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, the Chartered
Governance Institute and the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. She is
also an accredited mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation
Association Limited, a member and a qualified graphologist of the
British Institute of Graphologists and a member of Scientific Association
of Forensic Examiners.

Prior to joining the Board, Ms. Lam has worked with an international
accounting firm and other leading listed and private group of
companies and has extensive experience in company secretarial
practice, assurance, treasury and finance. She is currently providing
management consultancy and corporate secretarial services to listed
issuers and private companies, graphology consultancy and training

services and forensic handwriting examination.

Mr. Fu Yan Ming (“Mr. Fu”), aged 60, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since May 2021.
He is also a member and the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of remuneration committee.

Mr. Fu is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He obtained a Bachelors’ Degree of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Fu possess over 32 years of experience in accounting, audit,
internal control, financial management, strategic business planning,
corporate finance, merger and acquisition and corporate governance.
He has worked for various sizeable organizations including accounting
firms, pharmaceutical distribution company, TMT (Technology, Media
and Telecommunications) companies, manufacturing companies and
consultancy firm. During the past 17 years, he held various senior
positions including financial controller and company secretary in main
and GEM board listed companies of Hong Kong. Mr. Fu is currently
an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang United Investment
Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8366), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. Fu is the finance director of
a consultancy firm which provide various advice to private investment

funds.

Mr. Xia Qiankun (“Mr. Xia"), aged 27, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 27
September 2024. He is also a member and the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and a member of each of the audit

committee and the nomination committee.

Mr. Xia has extensive experience in corporate management. Currently
he is the general manager of Danyang Guangli Food Trading Co., Ltd.,
a food trading company in the People’s Republic of China, responsible
for the operation of the company for 2 year. In the past, he was an
engineer in automotive technology and maintenance.

Mr. Xia graduated from Changzhou Vocational Institute of Engineering
in the People’s Republic of China.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion
on the Group's future business development are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 14. The
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on page 11 and disclosed in the
section headed “Financial risk management and fair values of financial
instruments” in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five-years Financial
Summary on page 192. The Group is committed to supporting the
environmental sustainability. The Group has complied with laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources and energy saving. Green
initiatives and measures have been adopted in the Group's operation.
A separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be
published with the publication of this annual report. For details, please
refer to the Company's website.

The Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the operations of the Group. The
Group recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with our employees,
providing quality services to our customers and enhancing cooperation
with our business partners.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’'s sales and purchases from
continuing operations attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the Year is as follows:

FEEFREER
ERARERAEE S REEEES R
RS ET E RN
W

Percentage of the Group'’s total

EAEELABE-ES L
Sales Purchases
HE g
The largest customer BEREP 252%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREF AR 60.9%
The largest supplier SAHER 15.3%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHEREEET 43.2%

During the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

CHANGE OF COMPANY'S NAME

On 4 July 2023, the English name of the Company was changed from
“Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited” to “Wuxi Life International
Holdings Group Limited” and the dual foreign name in Chinese of the
Company "BEFBEEEER A E" was changed to "&£ & Bl &
Y S E AR A", The English and Chinese stock short name of the
Company were subsequently changed to “WUXI LIFE” and "B & &£
J&" with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 4 August 2023. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 May 2023,
29 June 2023 and 1 August 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 6 June 2023.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and the
Company'’s affairs for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 191.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As 31 December 2024 and 2023, there was no reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December 2024 was
381,792,000 ordinary Shares of par value of HK$0.01 per Share.

On 2 May 2024, the Company held an extraordinary general meeting
and approved (i) the consolidation of every ten (10) issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each in the share capital of the Company
into one (1) consolidated share of HK$0.40 in the share capital of the
Company (“Consolidated Shares”) (“Share Consolidation”); (ii) capital
reduction by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.39 on
each of the then issued Consolidated Shares from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01
("Capital Reduction”); and (iii) each of the authorized but unissued
Consolidated Shares of par value HK$0.40 be sub-divided into forty (40)
new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each (“Share Sub-division”).

The Share Consolidation became effective on 5 May 2024. Details of
the Share Consolidation were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 February 2024, 14 February 2024, 14 March 2024
and 2 May 2024 and the circular of the Company dated 9 April 2024.

The Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division were effective on 9
July 2024. Details of the Capital Reduction and Share Sub-division were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 9 February
2024, 14 February 2024, 14 March 2024, 2 May 2024, 7 June 2024
and 5 July 2024 and the circular of the Company dated 9 April 2024.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

EE

RAFEREEAREARNZEETEHNT:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Guanzhou (Chairman) BIEMAEE (ER)
Ms. Liu Xingmei |\t

Mr. Choi Pun Lap BRI A
Non-executive Directors FHYITESE

Ms. Li Hui Ling RERIZT

Ms. Guan Xiuying BARLLT
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria L2 22 4

Mr. Fu Yan Ming R A

Mr. Xia Qiankun BE ML E

Mr. Tai Chin Ho BTt

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles, Ms. Guan
Xiuying and Mr. Xia Qiankun who were appointed as a non-executive
Director and an independent non-executive Director, respectively, on 27
September 2024 will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles, Mr. Liu
Guanzhou and Ms. Li Hui Ling will retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Biographies of Directors” of this annual report.

(appointed on 27 September 2024)
(RZZB-_WFARAZT+HBEZEE)

(appointed on 27 September 2024)
(RZZB_WFARAZT+-BEZEE)
(resigned on 14 June 2024)
(RZZZMF A +THBERE)

EERLINELZWMEER T _MWENA
THEBRDHERERFATEETRB LI
HITES RARAZHAABN2ERE K
EZEHBEERERRBFRERTR/L
MREFEERLIBERBRRBFAG LE
BEE-

BARAZABRIE108(AVERTE - BIEM K &

ERERLUIENERERRBFRE LHE
RE MESTAERLBIEREET-

EECHARRERNAFR ([ESHE] -
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DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571
under the laws of Hong Kong)) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

EEEN

BREERRBEFASEREE2ESE HE
HARBTEIAIBRARAR -—FARNLNHE
B (—RETHERINMEIEZRBEAL -

EERRG HERORESZ
EERkRXE

R-ZE-—mME+-A=Z+—B EFRARQF
REBEEZE(EERFHRIAETEO(
HREEED ] ) (BBEGIES715) EXVED)
2Rt -HERMNDIESFT EEXIER AE
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ(l BIRBEFRIAEGOIEXVBETR

F8NHMHAEARARAI LMz ERZLAR (B
%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ“ %&Hﬁfﬂﬂﬁuzzmwxf& %EZE-{’E
PR BEAZREIORRE)  H(NVEAREE
&Hﬂ‘éﬂ%fﬁu%3521\%aaﬁvﬁééﬂﬁﬁkmﬁ<aaﬂﬂ
Nz KR (i) B R IEGEM L ™ 48 8
FS5A6ES6TIRMERRATI Rz ER R
KRBT

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of director Capacity shares shareholding
= 54 Ko EA BARERSL
(Note 1) (Note 2)

(BFE) (M1752)

Mr. Liu Guanzhou Beneficial owner 221,229,750 (L) 57.95%

21157 M 5 A& BB A

Notes:

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company.

2. The total number of 381,792,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2024 has

been used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of Directors, as at 31 December 2024, the
interests and short positions of the persons, other than Directors, in the
shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERFERRORMEBERG 2E
=

FTERE

BEEMFN AT -_NE+-_A=+—8"
RESIIZATHRBROSBERDFHEET
AR RNRIRBEESR R E KA E3361KEET
2ERMAzEERABNAT

Approximate

Name of substantial Number of percentage of

shareholder Capacity shares shareholding

TERRESR BB g4 BRHEAE BARERD L
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BFEE) (FF3E2)

Ms. Zhang Jiahui (Note 3) Beneficial owner 221,229,750 (L) 57.95%

REZEZ LT (KMEE3) EnlEAA

Mr. Zhang Dong Beneficial owner 20,316,595 (L) 5.32%

RE LA Em#EBE A

Notes: Hit -

1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in the shares of the Company. 1. [LIBZRARTROBTE -

2. The total number of 381,792,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2024 has 2. RZZEZWNE+ZRA=+—HEBTROHAH

been used for the calculation for the approximately percentage.

3. Ms. Zhang Jiahui is the spouse of Mr. Liu Guanzhou. Under the SFO, Ms.
Zhang is deemed to the interest in all the Company's share in which Mr. Liu is
interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Company had
not been notified of other interests or short positions of any other
person (other than the Directors, chief executives and the substantial
shareholders of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

381,792,000 E ARFTEBMAOE Dt -

3. REBXTAATVMELENES - REES RS
B0 RETREARBEEHEBESOFME
MR R 3 o
BREXHBEEEN R_FT_MFE+_A
Zt—B ARFAYERBAAEEAEMAL
(EF -ARAEBITBRARREBRBRERIN)
R A~ B R A7 sk AR R A% 40 P 1 A A0 80 R AR
BESRBEGIENBKRFEZELMZE
SRR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at the
annual general meeting to adopt a new share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) whereby the Board may grant share options
to employees, directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or
any person, at its discretion, for the primary purpose to recognise and
motivate their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme is
valid for a period of 10 years commencing from 8 May 2013. The Share
Option Scheme was lapsed on 8 May 2023 and no new share option
scheme was adopted during the years ended 31 December 2024 or
2023.

No share option was granted or outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2024 or 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles, or law of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

52 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024

BERESE

RZZE—Z=ZFRANB RAARBRREAF
AEBBERANTBIRE S ([BRESE])
CEBRBRE Bt EZ2ARNBERES
TEE HER FRAA REBLREBIEMA
TEHERE HEFXZENARRAREBES
HAKENER BREAZZERHE-Z
—=ZFRANBRIRB+TF - BRETER
ZEZ=FERANRBERR MBE_Z_NEF
F_E-_ZF+_ A=t BHLFERTE
M EREE

BE-_T-_MER-_T-_=F+-"/=+—
BEFERTEREBERETERL AR
ITEZ BENRE -

EERNRZ RPIEAENZ
B

BRAFHEREEIN EFHMERARAHE
ERAMBEARXRARMBARMAI L ARE
RYECEFEAEABEDAERZRS &
HREAANT BEEXEEEFEMNEARE

S o

Bl

EESY
REBEFENLRT LA FES RARES
BRATEBHD LB TR RITRE D
aKe

BrEEE

MARE SRS AT RENELBETE
WeXR R AR A B R Pl M BB R R 2 %
£ 7 A -

EEHERE
AEERBERFZEENEEHAERES
BN AFERE192H -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that requires the Company to enter into an agreement
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares, were entered
into by the Group during the Year or existed at the end of 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors has
an interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable any of the Directors and chief executive, their respective
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of
the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 15
to 39 of this annual report.

EIKGEE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review, in draft
form, the Company’s annual report and accounts, and half-year
report and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The
audit committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control of
the Group. As at the date of this report, the audit committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Fu Yan Ming, Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria
and Mr. Xia Qiankun. Mr. Fu Yan Ming is the chairman of the audit

committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and discussed with the Board the
internal controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of

the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all of the INEDs
are independent.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2024 interim
report required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the
Listing Rules are as follows:

(1)  Ms. Lam Yuen Man Maria has been appointed as a non-executive
director of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
2078), the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 July 2024.

(2) Mr. Choi Pun Lap has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of China Smarter Energy Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1004), the shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 August
2024.
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(3) Ms. Guan Xiuying has been appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 27 September 2024.

(4) Mr. Xia Qiankun has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 27 September
2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with the
public float requirement under rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, none of these related party transactions constitutes
connected transactions that need to be disclosed under the GEM Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, the Directors shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duty
of their respective offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors, the company secretary of the Company and officers of the
Company for the financial period ended 31 December 2024.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period have
been audited by Fan, Chan & Co. Limited (“Fan Chan").

Fan Chan retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Fan Chan as

auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Guanzhou
Chairman

27 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B % BET R

AR G 3T ERAT A TR 3)
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

To the shareholders of Wuxi Life International Holdings
Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wuxi
Life International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
66 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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M ¥ SR R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FEEFER

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgement, REBRFAZEX£HE FEEFEEARSY
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial AHGAMBRREBEASZEE 2 EEH - REE
statements of the current period. The matters were addressed in the TERAEHRMFIBTELGEASWBRER L UL
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a EZERBEETEREN MEMETRZEEE
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a B iERHER -

separate opinion on the matters.

The Key Audit Matters
FTEEFERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMREFATREZZTEHZAE

Revenue recognition

W TR

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's new
principal activities included the sales of products, provision
of advertising and e-commerce points management and
redemption services, merchant platform services, and
conference services.
HE_Z_NF+-_A=+—BLLFE EXKENHEE
¥XBEEERHE REESREFEBEESBEE REBRIR
B EAPTeaRBUALREERS-

Revenue from different products sales and services have
different terms, and accordingly different revenue recognition
criteria may apply. As such, there is an increased risk that
error may be made in the recognition of revenue.
TREMEERBRBOY D BB TRIER  BLrrse@m Tt
() B U 2o T SRR 2E o (R UE - Ui 5 B R I AT B H 3R R AR 0 L B 3
e
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BN EERNEFREFERATREA:

1. Understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls over recognition of revenue;

1. THEFERKSERBEOBRASEITNHR
B RETAE R

2. Inspecting the terms and conditions set out in the
Group’s contracts with customers on a sample
basis and discussing with the management on the
nature of each major type of sales of products
and services to evaluate the Group's revenue
recognition with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;
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B M B BLAT RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matters
TEEFER

FEFNSERE(A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMREFAHTREEZBEHZTE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

W (8)

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit matter
because (i) revenue is a key performance measure for the
Group and a key driver of the gross margin which increases
the risk that revenue may be manipulated to meet targets
and expectations; and (ii) different contract terms require
different accounting treatments and manual analysis which
increase the risk of errors in the recognition of revenue.
BB U amREN RERETFE REARONKER X
EHERESEEREMEN T ZEEFE R - LN U
WERAAEXR B R REHHRR  RTRELHIERERD
A EE5HERIE AT 35 A0 & B 52 865 2R 1Y /& B -

Reconciling revenue records as set out in the
management accounts, on a sample basis, to
sales and service contracts, and bank-in slips;
BMESEEREERAAHAO KRG CHEEERRES
HARRITAREEITHIR:

Confirming with the Group’s customers directly
on revenue records, summaries of sales and
service contracts signed between the Group and
its customers and the completion status of the
above sales and service contracts as at the year
end on a sample basis; and

mEEER EEETFRELSEZSE B
SEEAZFEITNHELRBEEOBE R Lt
HERRBE NN ERNTEMI K

Evaluating whether revenue was recorded in
the appropriate accounting period by assessing
whether the sales and service revenue recognition
progress was consistent with the terms of sales
and service contracts on a sample basis.
BMERTHHEHERRB U REREERTREER
BRBEHNNER B FHEERENREES
BRI ABR
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B M B BLAT R E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matters
FTEEHSBHE

FEFNSERE(A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMREATEEZSIEHZTE

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

i WAt B R K L B WK 2 R B BT A

As at 31 December 2024, the gross trade and other
receivables of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,313,000 and HK$4,082,000 respectively, and its
related allowance for expected credit loss amounted to
approximately HK$245,000 and HK$37,000 respectively.
RZZE_WF+_A=+—H E£ENEKERERREM
FE 4 5% 5 Bl 49 452,313,000 7T %.4,082,0005% 7T+ il £ 78
EEERNEBRE D R K /245,000 7T &%37,000/ 7T

The management of the Company performed periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables and the sufficiency of the allowance for expected
credit loss.

B AR EEE E HI AT (4 1 WRR 1 R E b 8 YRR 9 AT Uk [a] 14 BA
LIEHEEBEREBENTERE -

The management of the Company estimated the expected
credit loss allowance on trade receivables based on provision
matrix through grouping of various customers that have
similar loss patterns, after considering the credit profile of
respective customers, ageing analysis, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers. The management
of the Company also considered the forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay
the outstanding balances as to estimate the expected credit
loss allowance.
EAREREZBSEREXBUNZRERE (KEE
HEEFHNEERR RSN BELELE BELEK
ARERBAEEFOFEEIHERE) KREBEBMGTEK
RERWEMEEERREE BRRERENZERFAETE
BRFEEREEARNE N ZAEEER M ESE
EEEEE-
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables included the

following:
AP AE R A FE MR BR SR R At FE M R B RUE T 2 AT AR
FFRFEATEIE:

Understanding the key controls on how the
impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are estimated by the management;

T AR E IR JE 0] £ 5T WRR B K E R W FURLE
BREEolzZE 22K

Reviewing and assessing the application of the
Group's policy for calculating expected credit
losses ("ECLs"”) to consider consistency of
application;

EH R EREFEEHEEERE ([BHE
BEEB] )BRENERUSEER T

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the valuer engaged by management
and obtaining an understanding of the valuer's
scope of work and their terms of engagement;
TEEEEMZRAEMNESR TRIERE
TS0 T AR AR E R A TEE0E N K R AR
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B M B BLAT RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matters
TEEFER

FEFNSERE(A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMREFAHTREEZBEHZTE

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

FE W iR R % HL B W R 2 B R ()

The assessment of impairment of other receivables measured
at amortised cost under the expected credit loss model
is considered to be a key audit matters as it requires the
application of judgement to reflect information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions,
and use of subjective assumptions by the management.
BEFREEEERARBHEK AT ENAMEY T 2 RE
AEERAREESRTFE DHREFTEZERE R A A X
[ BB F 4~ B AT RO B R 2R 5 T8 ORI 69 & B DA e fiE
RAEEmRE-

We have identified the management’s assessment of
the recoverability of the trade and other receivables and
estimation of expected credit loss allowance as a key audit
matter because the amounts involved were significant and
the assessment required significant management judgement
and estimation uncertainty.

BAE S E IR e AR R R B R U ER e BT 2 T A
REREEEREMABIATERTEE DTARAIRS
BEXN BFGFEEAEREBHE R G THERZ -

Evaluating the techniques and methodologies in
ECLs model against the requirements of HKFRS 9
and checking the mathematical accuracy of the
ECLs;
AEREEEVBREENFIRATNRHAEE
FBREREXANRNE L TRERBEEBEN
b

Assessing the reasonableness of the basis and
judgement of the management in determining
credit loss allowance on the trade and other
receivables; and
AEEEEETHREEREEMERRNER
BiEEE s EERAABNAIEN : &

Testing the key data sources applied in the ECLs
computation on a sample basis by checking to
the supporting information, ageing analysis and
external data sources, as applicable.
FRREXFER R DT RINBEIR IR (10
BA) MEASATERAEEFRAERERNEZ
R R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

?%%ﬁ%ﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ%Zﬁ
==

BB RRAGAMBBREBES R
EHRRFRERMER 2 EAHERR M E
SRERBULHABHERMER 2 ZHED
BE-ARESER BTUHER—BER)EF
BB 2T FRAREMRE - RMETE
RABEZABTAEFMALAERE LEM
B

ARRER-BEAFLRE BRTRER
BEBBHRUMET 2 BH —ERERE
FE 2 B S BRI © 8 3R L P A2 o RO
SEERMEH B AEHR (AR AR )T
AREMEYEAPRENERANBRE
BRI 2 4R E - AR 78 B A 3SR BRI

ERREFAEFENETEN 2 B0 R
MERTHBELERHEBERRSEXZE
REREE o T AFITT

s EXRFEBAMBRRZIENER
Rt E e (EwmEmRREFRERME
B RETRATEAEFADEZ SR
2 VESAEEREEZERITEER /K
MeEBRRHER - REFRAKFM
Bz EBRERRM 2 @SN E #R
MEMZERBRRAZRAR RER
MEFAIRES R BR HBE BB &
AR PR st =X 1 P B4 -

EEHBZ AR ERE  ARS
BEZBRZENERF EB ML

BELFEREREBRAFR QG 63
F 32024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B

M ¥ SR R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for the purposes of the group audit. We remain responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Leung Kwong Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P03702
Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEEK

For the year ended 31 December 2024

RE-T-MEF+-A=t+-ALEE

2024 2023
ZE-MF —T=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M &F FExT FHET
(Restated)
(&)
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue U == 3 57.313 24,493
Cost of sales HERA (23,380) (8,851)
Gross profit E 5 33,933 15,642
Other income HAth Y A 4 582 107
Administrative expenses THFA X (14,818) (8,516)
Research and development expenses HEEMAx (11,997) (11,396)
Selling and distribution expenses $HE Mo sH B (11,027) (2,104)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 13 — (1,728)
Impairment loss on property, plant and %1% - B E & & #H R E &8
equipment 17 (142) (272)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {3 F # & & R (B & 18 2 — (1,278)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & BR F R B &5 18 (162) (67)
Impairment loss on other receivables b & Uz Z & B 18 (37) -
Loss from operations KRB (3,668) (9,612)
Finance costs & R A (334) (890)
Loss before taxation from continuing  REFEKLEEBL ZBRHA
operations E518 5 (4,002) (10,502)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTes (M) #H&e 6 (166) 100
Loss for the year from continuing SEICEEB 2 FERE
operations (4,168) (10,402)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEEK
(Loss)/profit for the year from ERIEKEEE CFE
discontinued operations (B8R &5 7 (1,423) 1,067
Loss for the year FEER (5.591) (9,335)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

— = 22
RElEm K
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—EINE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(Restated)
(gE75))
Attributable to: BT ALHEAS:
Owners of the Company KRARER A
— From continuing operations —RERELCEED (4,091) (10,402)
— From discontinued operations —REB R EER (1,419) 1,860
(5,510) (8,542)
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR A
— From continuing operations —REABELCEER (77) =
— From discontinued operations —REERIEEEER (4) (793)
(81) (793)
Loss for the year FEEFEB (5,591) (9,335)
BELTEEREREBRGR QA 67
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEERHEMEZEKREX

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2024 2023
—E-_mE —E-=4F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
et FTExT FHET
(Restated)
(&)
Loss per share BRER 10
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR RS (B)
From continuing operations REFEREER (1.73) (7.08)
From discontinued operations REDRIEEEER (0.60) 1.26
(2.33) (5.82)
Loss for the year FEEE (5,591) (9,335)
Other comprehensive income for FEHMZ2EKE
the year
ltems that may be reclassified HEAEENHIEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: BH:
- Exchange differences on translation —HBEINEEBKYBKHE 2
of financial statements of foreign ME W =5
operations 11 -
Total comprehensive expense for FE2EHMAXAH
the year (5,580) (9,335)
Attributable to: BT AL
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIEZ =N
— From continuing operations —RERFELEED (4,081) (10,402)
— From discontinued operations —REBRIEEEER (1,419) 1,860
(5,500) (8,542)
Non-controlling interests FEPERE =
— From continuing operations —REFBELEER (76) =
— From discontinued operations —REERIEEEFER (4) (793)
(80) (793)
Total comprehensive expense for FEXHEMAXAHE
the year (5,580) (9,335)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A IR R R

As at 31 December 2024
RZE-_ME+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-mEF —EZ=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K e FExT FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 11 295 -
Goodwill EES 13 9 =
Intangible assets mIVEE 14 33 -
337 -

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 10,034 =
Trade and other receivables JE UK AR R K B Ath B LK R 15 18,477 5,505
Loans and interest receivables W E RN F B 16 = =
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeSEEY 18 32,897 3,198
61,408 8,703

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JE 1 BR 5% I H At JE 1+ 5K 19 5,527 846
Contract liabilities cHaE 20 29,578 6,641
Interest-bearing borrowings Bt B 1 3K 21 740 790
Amount due to a director N — (I EEEER 22 2 2,852
Lease liabilities HERE 23 526 757
Current tax payable FES BRI ERFR 18 29 =
36,402 11,886
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEEFE(AEFH) 25,006 (3,183)
Total assets less current liabilities ZBELZLEBRRBHARE 25,343 (3,183)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A IR R R

As at 31 December 2024
RZE-_ME+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
ZE-MF —E=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt &t FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Defined benefit plan obligations REX Wt EB 25 927 852
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 - 526
927 1,378
Net assets/(liabilities) EETFE (AEFH) 24,416 (4,561)
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital % Z< 27(a) 3,818 50,906
Reserves & 20,473 (50,102)
Total equity attributable to EATHEEABEREZEE
owners of the Company 24,291 804
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR A 31(c) 125 (5,365)
Total equity/(capital deficiency) R/ (EBREH#) 24,416 (4,561)
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 June ZFER T _AFNA-_t+tHABLAERE
2025. T8 -

Liu Guanzhou

255 M

Director

EF

The notes on pages 75 to 191 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEm®HX

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_MF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Non-
Share Share Capital Capital  Exchange Other Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total

BRE  RHEE EARE ERBH  EIRE  HtEE  RHER @i FERES @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TiEn Ti#n FAL Tir Ti#n Tin TAL FAT FET

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

27(b)(i)) 27)i) - 27)ii) - 27(6)iv)) 27(b)v))

(Bst (Wit (Bt (hrs# (Hrst

7)) 27b)i)) - 27b)ii) - 276)i)  276))

At 1 January 2023 R-g-=£-8-8 50906 381490 2427 16,69 1 (10 (442075 936  (4572) 4774
Changes in equity for 2023: Z—B-=EvE#2H:
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (8,542) (8,542) (793) (9,335)
Other comprehensive income ~ FEEH2ENE
for the year, net of nil tax BNREHRE
- Exchange differences on —RENEEBRE
translation of financial BRCERER
statements of foreign
operations - - - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive expense FE2HM X4 E

for the year - - - - - = (8,542) (8,542) (793) (9,335)
At 31 December 2023 and WZB-=f+Zf
1 January 2024 =t-BR=Z=MmF
-A-H 50,906 381,490 2,427 16,699 1 (102) (450,617) 804 (5,365) (4,561)
Changes in equity for 2024 —F-MEEHEH:
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - - (5,510) (5.510) (81) (5.591)
Other comprehensive income  FEEM2H K"
for the year, net of nil tax SNBRIHE
- Exchange differences on -BENEEBH B
translation of financial BECERER
statements of foreign
operations - - - - 10 - - 10 1 "

Total comprehensive expense EE2AMXAE

for the year = - - - 10 - (5,510) (5,500) (80) (5,580)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR
(Note 31(b)) (Hi#310)) - - - - - 102 - 102 5,370 5,472
Capital reduction upon capital ~ REREHREE
reorganisation (Note 27(a)) (Hi#270a) (49,633) - - - - - 49,633 - - -
Rights issue (Note 27(a)) "W (H22706)) 2,545 27,998 = = = = = 30,543 = 30,543
Rights issue expense RRRAX - (1,658) - - - - - (1,658) = (1,658)
Capital injection from non- RENER A FEER
controlling shareholder of REZHE
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 209 209
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B AR
(Note 31(c)) (Ha310) 5 5 s > 5 s S 5 (9) (9)
At 31 December 2024 RZB-mE+ZA
=t-A 3,818 407,830 2,427 16,699 1 - (406,494) 24,291 125 24,416
The notes on pages 75 to 191 form part of the consolidated financial FE75BZ191B W ALXGAMBHREX A
statements. KBRS
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2024 2023
—E-MF —E-=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M &F FExT FHET
Operating activities REED
Loss before taxation B 4 A1 S 48
— From continuing operations —RERELEER (4,002) (10,502)
— From discontinued operations —REERIEEEFER 7 (1,423) 1,067
Adjustments for: R
— Bank interest income —RITFE WA (2) -
- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net — &M B Q& W FEE 31(b) - (6)
— Loss/(gain) on sale of discontinued ~ —HHEBKRILELER Y
operations, net BiE (Yes) F58 7 5,253 (3,785)
— Reversal of impairment loss on —EREFREEERD
loan receivables 7 (3,841) (228)
- Depreciation of property, plantand —#%¥ BEEXEFE
equipment 86 169
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FRAEEEFRE 2 = 790
— Finance costs — R & B AR 334 890
— Written off of property, plant and —MEE R E L&
equipment - 4
— Written-off of deposits —MiEIRE - 1,969
— Impairment loss on goodwill —HEREERE 13 - 1,728
— Impairment loss on property, —E BEREZERE
plant and equipment BB 11 142 272
— Impairment loss on right-of-use —ERREEEREERE
assets 12 - 1,278
— Provision of impairment loss on — & U BR R B H Ath B WK
trade and other receivables B S B 199 67
72 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited

Annual Report 2024



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024

RE-F-ME+-A=t+-ALEE

2024 2023
ZE-MF —T=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M &F FExT FHET
Operating loss before working EELESHBAZRERR
capital changes (3,254) (6,287)
Increase in inventory FE#EM (10,034) =
(Increase)/decrease in trade and J7E UK AR R e L At B LK R
other receivables () A (9,502) 3,174
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JE AT BR 3R % H At FE SR
other payables B, Cra) 4,635 (1,166)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities @4 & &, R d) 22,937 (720)
Increase in defined benefit plan RERX AT B &G M
obligations 75 101
Net cash generated from/(used in) &EFB (A BEFEH
operations 4,857 (4,898)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BENRRECEMER (137) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) &E&FBFFS (FA)
operating activities B FHE 4,720 (4,898)
Investing activities RETED
Interest received 2 A2 2 =5
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEMBARZRER
subsidiaries, net FEE 31(b) 295 5,648
Payment for purchase of property, BEDE BEREREENMNR
plant and equipment (520) (141)
Cash inflow on acquisition of WERB AR ZEERA
a subsidiary 31(d) 88 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from R&EE (FrH), g
investing activities B FHE (135) 5,507
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2024 2023
ZE-MF —E=F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt &t FHET FHET
Financing activities A& T
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEEHEEAILD 18(b) (757) (800)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfNHEERE A B8 D 18(b) (47) (28)
Interest paid B 147 8 18(b) (287) (862)
New loans from third parties RKEE= EZ%ﬁ TR 18(b) - 7,356
Repayment of other loans BEEMER 18(b) (50) (10,374)
Rights issue il 27(a) 28,885 -
Capital injection into a subsidiary from JFEZEEZAMBAREE
non-controlling interests 209 -
(Repayment to)/advance from a director ({EEEEF#H) /EHAK (2,850) 2,852
Net generated from/(used in) MEFBRE (FARE
financing activities FEE 25,103 (1,856)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BE&RBESESEWE M~
cash equivalents (ma) B8 29,688 (1,247)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzBREeRELE
1 January B 3,198 4,445
Effect of foreign exchange EXESHTE
rate changes 1 -
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZAR=+t—BzH&R
31 December ReEEY 32,897 3,198
S Below HK$1,000 * ER1,0008 7T °
The notes on pages 75 to 191 form part of the consolidated financial ZF75BZ191B W ARGAMBRER 2 A
statements. E D ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

FomEF-AS+—BIER

COMPANY INFORMATION

Wuxi Life International Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company has its registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company was Room

the Cayman

H, 2/F, Manson Industrial Building, 8 A Kung Ngam Village Lane,
Shaukeiwan, Hong Kong with effect from 15 June 2023, and was
changed to Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 12 May 2025.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") which is the
Company’s functional currency and the Group's presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2.

76

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group as set out in
note 2(c).

A summary of the material accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(c)

financial statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 33.

Changes in accounting policies

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

- Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

- Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

- Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

- Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier
Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material effect on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2.

78

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective for the current accounting period. The Group

has already commenced an assessment of the impact of

these new and amendments to HKFRSs but is not yet in a

position to state whether these new and amendments to

HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of

operations and financial position:

. Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

° Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of

Exchangeability

. Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards, Annual Improvements
to HKFRS Accounting Standards —

Volume 11
° Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7, Amendments to the

Classification and Measurement of

Financial Instruments
. HKFRS 18, Presentation and

Disclosure in Financial Statements

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

To be determined

1 January 2025

1 January 2026

1 January 2026

1 January 2027

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

2.

FomEF-AS+—BIER

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to equity owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2.

80

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(f)

(Continued)
In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Goodwill

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Motor vehicles 4 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years or over the
remaining terms of leases

(whichever is shorter)
Furniture and fixtures 4 to 5 years

Computer and other equipment 3 to 4 years

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(i)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
when they are available for use and their estimated useful

lives are as follows:

Trademark 8 years
Mobile games and application 2 to 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

82

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(h) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and

leases of low-value assets.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(i)(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost of right-of-use assets using the straight-line method
over the lease term or where it was likely the Group would
obtain ownership of the assets, the life of the assets, as set
out in note 2(f).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
() Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
loans and interest receivables and trade and other

receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive), discounted at original
effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting

is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring
ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which
result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2.

84

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial assets since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The
12-month ECLs are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial asset assessed at the end of the
reporting period with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held).
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or

effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial asset’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor's
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset's
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial assets with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. Subsequent
recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or

loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

(if) Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and
- investments in subsidiaries in the Company'’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or
to the smallest group of cash-generating unit if

otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

88

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

a)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in and first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale. Provision is made for obsolete,
slow moving or defective items where appropriate.

Valuation and impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. In addition, the directors perform an
inventory review on a product-by-product basis regularly
and assess the need for write down of inventories. Any
impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss on
inventories require directors’ judgements, assumptions and

estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2.

90

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(1)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

(m) Loans and interest receivables

(n)

Loans receivable are loans granted to borrowers and
are classified as current assets if the collection of loans
receivable is expected in one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. Interest receivables are
interests derived from loans granted to borrowers.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 2(u)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2(l)).

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, other payables are stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice

amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

92

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(s) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination, or items recognised

directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect

of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes.

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and

right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable
temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain

criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R 3k B RE

A

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(u) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sales of products, the provision of advertising
e-commerce and supply chain management services, the
provision of software platform services and revenue from
mobile games and applications in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2.

94

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Principal versus agent
When another party is involved in providing goods or

services to a customer, the Group determines whether the

nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide

the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a

principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be

provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Provision of software platform includes:

Sales of licensed software, which are recognised
when the goods are delivered to customers and
titles has been passed which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods;

Software maintenance service income received
or receivable from customers when the
maintenance service contracts are entered into,
which is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the maintenance service contract;

Software subscription income from software
application and website development, which are
recognised at point in time when the relevant
services are rendered; and

Income from mobile application development,
website conversion, website development
deriving from providing software application and
electronic learning platform to customers, which
is recognised over time in accordance with the
output method for measuring progress when
the related services are rendered. Revenue is
also recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
contract liabilities over the term of the service
contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from sales of products:

Principal

Sales of products, which are recognised when the
goods are delivered to customers and titles have been
passed which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods.

Agent

The Group determines that, with respect to the goods
provided by suppliers to customers, it acts as an
agent rather than a principal. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time when the related services

are rendered.

Revenue from advertising e-commerce and supply

chain management services:

i. Advertising e-commerce income is recognised at
the point in time when the customers complete
the redemption of reward points into cash from
the platform;

ii. Merchant platform services income is recognised
at the point in time when the underlying
transaction between the buyer and the platform
is completed; and

iii.  Conference service income is recognised at the
point in time when the conferences are held.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2(i)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

2.

96

=

“mE+ZAS+—BILEE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
respective functional currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(x) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

(yv) Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

- represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations;

- is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations; or

- is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the
earlier of disposal or when the operation meets the criteria
to be classified as held for sale.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued operation,
the comparative statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is re-presented as if the operation
had been discontinued from the start of the comparative
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

2.

98

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(z) Related parties

(i)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(2)

3)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(1

(2)

3)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

2. EXEHHERESN (&)
(z) BHD (&)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(z) Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

3.

100

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3.
(a) Revenue
Revenue represents the sales value of goods and services
supplied to customers from the provision of software
platform services, advertising e-commerce, supply chain
management services, and sales of products. An analysis of
the Group's revenue within the scope of HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” disaggregated by major

products or service lines is as follows:

W=k oKk E
(a) Wzt

WHESRRERHEFaRE B
EEFEBE HEREEREIAR
EmHEMBRETER 2 E R KR
BrHEEE BEVHHRSER
FISRIFEFANKE] BEAR
EERRREFZEMARBERED
2w

2024 2023
ZEZNEF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
From continuing operations: REFERCEER:
Provision of software REBRGFARE
platform services
— Sales of licensed software — i E e 7,703 5,009
- Software maintenance services — 4R TS 4,558 4,959
— Software subscription —HHETEE 215 213
— Income from mobile application —FHERRE @k
development, website conversion, iR Hub 2 A
website development 17,795 14,312
30,271 24,493
Sales of products EmiHE
— Sales of daily necessities, cosmetics, — B & bz & EA
and personal care products EIREmMIHE 5,471 =
— Sales of health supplements —fRiE M IHE 2,826 -
8,297 -
Commission income from ERHEREZAS KA
agency sales of products* 5,904 -

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3.
(CONTINUED)
(a) Revenue (Continued)

WK o EB®mE (&)

(a) %z (4&)

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Advertising e-commerce and supply BEEEFEEREEEESRE
chain management services AR %
- Advertising and e-commerce —BEEREFABES
points management and ERRHEBRRS
redemption services 4,759 -
— Merchant platform services —-BPEER® 2,050 =
- Conference services —BHRB 6,032 -
12,841 -
57,313 24,493
g The gross sales amount of approximately HK$14,687,000 related e HAEFREBETREZZH

to arrangements whereby the Group is considered to act as agent.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iv) respectively.

For the provision of software platform services, IT service
contracts in existence as at 31 December 2024 for
which the performance obligations in the contracts were
unsatisfied or partially satisfied as at that date, the Group
will recognise the expected revenue in the future when the
remaining performance obligations under the contracts are
satisfied (see note 2(u)(i)).

BRI 5 EARRE4) 514,687,000%
i o

RWaERRE R RT5E 02
BF A O B ER M EE3(0)(3)
K3(b)(iv) °

RIEHEHTaRYE FEE_F
THFEF-A=+—BERZAR
RERIADEREHNZBHED
ZEMBMBERBAHNNE A&E
BRRIERE DO RIBREOET
By AR TR A e (R BT RE2(u)()) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

102

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors who are the chief
operating decision makers (the “CODM") of the Group,
which are used to make strategic decisions.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has
three (2023: one) reportable and operating segments in
its continuing operations. The segments are managed
separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable
segments:

Continuing operations
- Software platform Developing and marketing
of patented server based
technology and the provision
of communications software

platform and software related

services.

Sales of licensed software

The Group is engaged in the
sales of proprietary licensed
solutions, such as real time
website translation software,
telephony solution and enterprise
management system, available
both on-premises or on the cloud.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

Software maintenance services
The Group provides post-sale
software maintenance services,
including regular updates, system
patches, bug fixes, and technical
support. These services ensure
the continued functionality and
compliance of the software during
the contract period. The services
are delivered evenly over the
maintenance term.

Software subscription

The Group offers access to
software applications and
web-based platforms through
subscription arrangements.
Customers receive continuous
access to the software and its
functionalities throughout the
subscription period, typically
under a fixed-term contract.

Income from mobile
application development,
website conversion, website
development

The Group provides customised
development services for mobile
applications, website conversion,
and website development
projects, including client-specific
software tools. These services are
tailored to individual customer
requirements and are delivered
over the term of the service
contract development period.

3.

WamRkoaHRE (F)

(b) 7EB#HE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

104

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

— Sales of products

Sales of a wide spectrum of
product categories, mainly
including skin care products,
agricultural products, daily
necessities, etc. on an e-commerce
platform. The “Sales of products”
is a new operating segment
during the year ended 31
December 2024.

The Group recognises revenue
from the sales of products when
the performance obligations are
satisfied, which typically occurs
upon the delivery of products
to the customer’s designated
location, such as the customer’s
premises, warehouse, or port of
discharge. Revenue is recognised
at a point in time when control of
the goods has been transferred
to the customer, signifying the
customer’s ability to direct the use
of and obtain substantially all the
benefits from the goods.

For transactions in which the
Group acts as a principal,
the Group assumes primary
responsibility for fulfilling the
contractual obligations, bears the
inventory risk, and has discretion
in establishing prices. In such
cases, revenue is recognised on a
gross basis, representing the total
consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited

Annual Report 2024

3.

WK o EBHmE (&)

(b) 7EB#HE (&)

—EmHE

EEFABTA
#EEINE

AR XBE
FEER BE

m-BAmE-
[EmiEE] A
HE-_Z-_NF
+-—A=+—8”
IEFEZHEE

DEBe

AEEERITRE
MR RERE
an 35 B B M as
i EE ah 3H & H IR
#s-REEMR
NEFFEEM
B(PlmERF®
W B EIEH
EAEIRHER-
Ug & FE 7 m 1
BEEBTEP
(BERERFP
EMTEEMN
R XE M
TRESERED
M) Z B A B
R -

RAREIEAE
HANRSMm
5 AEEYHE
TANEIERE
FTEEMT AE
FERK TA
EBHITREE
BoEBBIER
TSk eE
R AAEH
TBHIERESK
BRAE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

In certain transactions, the
Group is regarded for financial
reporting purposes as acting as
an agent in arranging for the
provision of products by third-
party suppliers to customers. In
such arrangements, the Group is
not considered to have obtained
control of the underlying products
and therefore is considered to
earn a commission or fee in
exchange for facilitating the
transaction. Accordingly, revenue
is recognised on a net basis,
representing only the fee or
commission income earned by the

Group.

Transportation and other related
activities undertaken prior to the
transfer of control are considered
fulfilment activities and do not
affect the timing of revenue
recognition.

3.

WKk o EB®mE (&)

(b) 7EB#HE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

106

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

— Advertising
e-commerce
and supply chain
management

services

Provision of combination of
promotion and supply chain
management services which aim
to provide a fast and cost-effective
channel to link up merchants,
platforms and end users. The
“Advertising e-commerce and
supply chain management
services” is a new operating
segment during the year ended 31
December 2024.

Advertising and e-commerce
points management and
redemption service

The Group provides cash
redemption service to a customer
on an e-commerce platform in
connection with the platform’s
advertising and e-commerce
points management program.
Under this arrangement, the
Group facilitates the conversion of
reward points accumulated by end
users on the platform into cash,
which is subsequently disbursed
to the users on behalf of the
platform.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

Merchant platform services

The Group provides merchant
platform services to a customer
on an e-commerce platform, by
introducing merchants to list
their products or services on
the platform. The Group earns
revenue in the form of referral
fees for successful merchant
onboarding and commissions
based on the sales generated by
the referred merchants on the
platform.

Conference services

The Group provides conference
services to a customer on
a e-commerce platform,
which include the planning,
organisation, and execution
of promotional events and
conferences aimed at enhancing
the visibility and market presence
of the platform.

3.
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(b) 7EB#HE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3.

108

— Mobile games

and applications
(“Mobile Game
and Application
Business”)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
In previous years, the Group had a reportable segment,
which is presented as discontinued operations, as follows:

Discontinued operations

. Game publishing, development

of mobile games and related
intellectual property and platform,
mobile applications.

First Surplus Investments Ltd
("First Surplus”), which was
engaged in Mobile Game and
Application Business, ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Company
on 31 December 2024, details of
which are set out in note 31(b).

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. WaEkoHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ‘* (%)
(i) Segment revenues and results () DEfE R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-Z-NE+-A=+t-HLEE

Continuing operations

BELSEEY
Advertising
e-commerce
and supply
chain
Software Sales of management
platform products services Total
BEET
B R4 EE
BHETA Em#HE BB R B @zt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$"000
TERL TER TER TERL
Disaggregated by timing of ~ RKEHRAKHE S
revenue recognition
Point in time NE—BEZ 1,733 14,201 12,841 34,775
Over time BE 5 22,538 - - 22,538
Segment revenue from external ~ RENREP 25 Bz
customers 30,271 14,201 12,841 57.313
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (BE) 3,490 222 (1,858) 1,854
Unallocated administration costs A2 E/THE H (5,654)
Unallocated finance costs AP BAE KA (202)
Loss before tax from REBBERLLEEy
continuing operations BRBATER (4,002)
EXGEEERERFR QA 109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. WaEkoHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #E#HE (&)
(i)  Segment revenues and results (Continued) (1) DEWaREE ()

For the year ended 31 December

2023
BHeE-_Z-_=F+=-A=+—H801
FE
Continuing
operations
iz*%« **%ﬁ(%
Software
platform Total
HHEFEE ET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Disaggregated by timing RUEBEAREE S
of revenue recognition
Point in time RE — R 7,517 7,517
Over time BEERHE 16,976 16,976
Segment revenue from REINARF 27 ERE
external customers 24,493 24,493
Segment loss DEEE (3,979) (3,979)
Unallocated income FHEUA 101
Unallocated administration costs RAOBITHRER (5,761)
Unallocated finance costs PN o = YN (863)
Loss before tax from REBELCEER 2
continuing operations BREIRIEE (10,502)

Wes MRS EERHRE D
REBEZEDHEE
ZHEARZE D BELE
DPEADEDME BE MK

Revenue and costs are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those B B
segments and the costs incurred by those segments
without allocation of unallocated depreciation of

property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, EREAEEENE BT
certain finance costs, certain sundry income, and BMEKRKAKN - BETHERAR

AOERX (BREARMAX)
ISR TEE 2B -

unallocated expenses (including corporate expenses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. WERkSHESE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #E#HE (&)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities (i) HHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and REBBRITEHFELE DI
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. EDMBERBBEITWNT -

At 31 December At 31 December
2024 2023
R-ZE-MF R-ZTEZ=F
+=A=+-B +=-A=+-8

HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(gE5)
Reportable segment assets REBERLEELN
from continuing operations 2o MBEE
Software platform BHFEae 11,776 7,794
Sales of products EmiH s 19,912 =
Advertising e-commerce and supply B & E TR M
chain management services e s IR AR S 4,924 =
Total segment assets DHEELE 36,612 7,794
Assets of discontinued operation - B #& |FE & £ EE —
Mobile games and applications F e & pE A = 5
Unallocated bank balances and ROBBITHEBERE
cash 21,054 572
Goodwill (Note) BB () 9 =
Other receivables (Note 15) H o FEWGR (B 5F15) 3,841 -
Other unallocated assets Hitt KD EEE 229 332
Consolidated total assets EBERE 61,745 8,703
Note: Goodwill is not included in the measures of segment Ma: BEYEBESHEE
assets, but impairment loss on goodwill is included in E-EFMBREEBERGA
the measures of segment results. The effects of this DEHEBTFE- W THBED
asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments are shown T ERERES -

in the tables above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3.

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(ii)  Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

WamRkoRHRE (F)

(b) 7EB#HE (&)
(i) #EHEEREE (&)

At 31 December At 31 December

2024 2023
R-EB-@OmF RZEZ=F
+=—A=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH& T
(Restated)
(g=E75)
Reportable segment liabilities REFELEEBHN
from continuing operations AE2HKoWEE
Software platform HHTEa 9,401 8,905
Sales of products EmigE 18,009 =
Advertising e-commerce and supply B&E T &
chain management services HEEEIERS 6,216 -
Total segment liabilities HEHEEEE 33,626 8,905
Liabilities of discontinued ERIEEEEBEE -
operation — Mobile games and F i & pE A
applications - 179
Interest-bearing borrowings LIRSRER A 740 790
Other unallocated liabilities HtADEBE 2,963 3,390
Consolidated total liabilities EBEERE 37,329 13,264

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than assets of discontinued operation,
certain bank balances and cash, goodwill and
certain other receivables; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than liabilities of discontinued operation,
interesting bearing borrowings, tax liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities and certain other
payables.

112 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. WERZH®ERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #E#HE (&)
(iii) Other segment information (i) B 5 5 E#
Advertising
e-commerce
and supply
chain Consolidated -
Software Sales of management continuing
platform products services  Unallocated operations
EEEF
B R e st -
BHTA Em#HE EERY AOW RESEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TET TERT TET
For the year ended BE-Z-m%E
31 December 2024 TZA=t-HLEE

Amounts included in measure AP BEERIBEE
of segment profit or lossor ~ FEBHEHE:
segment assets:

Depreciation ne 1 6 69 - 86
Research and development RERZ

expenses 11,997 - - - 11,997
Interest on: THEE 2F8:

- lease liabilities -HEAR 47 - - - 47

- other loan —HEHER 85 - - 202 287
Impairment loss on trade and JEU R SR E At

other receivables ERHREEE 151 24 24 - 199
Impairment loss recognised in HOE BREREE

respect of PPE BRAEER - 35 107 - 142
Additions to non-current assets  3EEIE EKE M - 40 480 - 520

BEAEERIZEREBBR A A 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3. akoHBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #E#HE (&)
(iii) Other segment information (Continued) (iii) B EE# (&)
Consolidated -
Software continuing
platform Unallocated operations
st —
BHTEAE APEE PHELEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET
For the year ended BE-ZT-=%
31 December 2023 tTZA=+—-HLEE
Amounts included in measure FFADPEB[IBEE
of segment profit or lossor sTEHNEEHE:
segment assets:
Depreciation and amortisation  #7& [ # % 921 38 959
Research and development MEREX
expenses 11,396 = 11,396
Interest on: THER ZHE:
— lease liabilities -MHEERE 27 1 28
- other loan —HMER - 862 862
Impairment loss recognised in Bt 72 5 A E & 18
respect of goodwill 1,728 - 1,728
Impairment loss recognised in B % BE K& HE
respect of property, plant and  FEREEEE
equipment 272 - 272
Impairment loss recognised in Bt {E FAEE ERRRE
respect of right-of-use assets BiE 1,278 - 1,278
Impairment loss recognised on  BLAEUER 5K R H Ath
trade and other receivables JE W R T SRR B B 1B 67 - 67
Additions to non-current assets 37 B & E 824N 1,675 = 1,675
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iv) Geographical information and major
customers

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group's property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible
assets and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of the revenue is based
on location of the customers, and the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in case of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets, and the location of the operation
to which they are allocated, in case of intangible

assets and goodwill.

3.

external customers

- continuing operations

WKk o EB®mE (&)

(b) 7EB#HE (&)

(iv) hE&EHREBEES

TERHFINEROAKERE
SNAREZP 2 s R (DA & E
ZHE - BELREHE EH
BEE BREENLEE
(MHEEFRBEE]) AEM
Bz &R W PFAEMETD
BREPMES D MiEEIFE
MBEEMENRREER
BT (W% BB Rk
REAREREEEMNT)
REEmaEwH (LELE
ENEEMS)ED -

Revenue from

Specified
Non-current assets

RENREEZWE

-FELEER EEERBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“E-QmE —T-=F “E-mE ZE-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAET THER TET
Hong Kong BB 30,172 24,474 - =
Mainland China A 27,042 - 337 -
Others Hit 99 19 - =
57,313 24,493 337 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3.
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iv) Geographical information and major
customers (Continued)
Others mainly cover Macau and Taiwan.

Revenue from major customer which accounted for

WK o EBHmE (&)

(b) 7EB#HE (&)
(iv) #EEHNRTEEEF
(%)

EprEmERFIRAE-

HAREBEBUIZE10%K A

10% or more of the total revenue of the Group is set ZEBRPEEZKREHT
out below: OENE

2024 2023
—E_mE B =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Customer A BEPA N/ATE A 3,274
Customer B ZFB 14,450 N/AA i A
Customer C EFEC 10,790 N/AZ 3 F

Revenue from customers A, B and C are arising from
software platform business, sales of products business
and software platform business respectively.

KEEFA BRCZWZED A
EXBEMHTYEEL HE
EmEHERRETFaER-

4. OTHER INCOME 4. Hy A
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
From continuing operations REFELCEER

Bank interest income RITH B WA 2 —*

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEM B AR 2 W= F 5 - 6

Government grants (Note) BT Bh (K7at) 575 =

Sundry income MIBBHBA 5 101

582 107

* Below HK$1,000.
Note:

Government grants mainly represented subsidies granted to the key supported
enterprises under the sales of products segment by the PRC Government, as
one of the Group’s subsidiaries is on the list of PRC Government's key supported
enterprises. The subsidies were recognised in profit or loss when received. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies in relation to the grants and
the grants were determined at the sole discretion of the relevant government
authorities in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 5.
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation from continuing operations is arrived at after

REFACEEB ZBRBA

BE

KAEFBEKEEB 2 BRRAMEBRE NG

charging:
2024 2023
—E-MEF =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FET
(a) Finance costs: (a) BERA:
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 47 28
Interest on other borrowings H 5 3R B 287 862
334 890
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRK (BREEEH
emoluments (Note 8))*: & (KaE8) ) +:
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHMBEF 20,568 17,263
Contributions to defined contribution & FOR RET Bl
retirement plan 956 710
Expenses recognised in respect of BT X 2 5T B R A
defined benefit plans: X :
- long service payments (Note 25) —RER%®
(Ktit25) 75 101
21,599 18,074
(c) Other items: (¢ HMmEB:
Auditor's remuneration 1% 25 B BN 1,000 420
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 4,664 =
Cost of services** Pl 75 B AR+ * 18,716 8,851
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -WELRZBETE
equipment 86 169
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE - 790
Expense relating to short-term leases RS 2 AR 1,595 44
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - WERHE
equipment REEE 142 272
Platform service feexxx F B RS B enn 4,620 25
Marketing expensexx**+ B IE R S e 5,240 -
Legal and professional fee ERREEER 670 3,169
BEEGEBRERERAERRA A 117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

118

=

“mE+ZAS+—BILEE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

* %

* Kk

*Kkok K

Staff costs of approximately HK$1,809,000 (2023: HK$1,859,000),
HK$5,247,000 (2023: HK$2,838,000), HK$2,546,000 (2023:
HK$1,995,000) and HK$11,997,000 (2023: HK$11,382,000) were
recognised as cost of sales, administrative expenses, selling and
distribution expenses, and research and development expenses,
respectively.

The cost of service includes subcontracting costs of HK$4,759,000 (2023:
HK$5,870,000) and conference related cost of HK$6,032,000 (2023
HK$Nil).

The platform service fee mainly includes information service fees paid by
the Group to the operator of an e-commerce platform, as well as fees
for using the sales platform.

Marketing expense mainly includes the advertising service fees paid
by the Group for participating in the promotional activities on an
e-commerce platform.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RELATING

TO
(a)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

X B #FH
&8 (4

*

* kK

* KKk K

IH

a2 BRBA
)

K #71,809,0008 7 (ZF ==
F:1,859,0008 ) 5,247,000/
T (=ZF=-=4:2,838,000%&)
2,546,000/ 5T (= F = =4 : 1,995,000
EIT)]%11,997,0008 7T (ZFE - =%
11,382,000/ 7T ) 73 FI| #E 57 73 15 & A 2K »
TEES HERSHAZTRAEHS -

it

8T

@

iﬁﬁﬁf%ﬁrﬁfﬁﬁ B 74,759, 000%*7% (=
=4 : 5,870,000/ 7 ) X & % 6 B X
7#5 032,000/ (ZFE-=Z4F - FH#r)-

FERBETEZAEAEENEFEHHETF
BEEELNNEAREE REFEEFE
EHES -

EHASTEOEAEERLEEFHK
FEryEEZBIIZTAESREE -

HEERACEXBRAB RS
HERMEH

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEBmRZHERE:
profit or loss represents:
2024 2023
—E-NE —E=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Current tax B H#A 5 1|/
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEREMEH 166 S
Deferred tax BB E
- Origination and reversal of —EERBOYREEE
temporary differences (Note 24) (Hr5t24) = (100)
Income tax expense/(credit) FigRims (Ex) 166 (100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RELATING TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(i)

(i1)

(1ii)

Hong Kong Profits Tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for 2024 (2023: HK$Nil) as the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong have no assessable profits
for the year.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%) for the year.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are
qualified as small and micro businesses and enjoy
preferential income tax rate of 5% (2023: Nil).

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions
Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the

Group is not subject to income tax in Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

6. ERECLEEBER RS
BHaERMEH (&)

(a) HEREHFZHIE]E (&)

(i)

(i1)

BB
HREEBFEMA L 2B
NEIR T N E I EEA
&R B E I MU FE I E
ELBEBFNESHBER(ZZ
Z=FEET) -

;G 1P 3BT 1E B
RAFE R EARKLAM
(TR B ) & i sz 2 Bt
BARARBED% (ZF
TZF 5% ) BB
FTg®i -

N
ANEMAECEEERER
SR EBEBRAEHE(ZZ
TS )

(iii) EMFB A EEEZ AT

7

REBEMEHRARN LRGN A
SEBEABMNRASEERE
BRZES ([HEEXE
S EH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6. HENFEKEERER RS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS BERAEH (&)
RELATING TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses/(credit) (b) BEABHETENHERS
and accounting loss at applicable tax rates: (BE)EETERZHHE
-3
2024 2023
—E-omE =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
S FHET
(Restated)
(gE75)
Loss before taxation from continuing REBEREES
operations B B A0 & 18 (4,002) (10,502)
Notional tax credit on loss before BEEREGTE ZRBIA
taxation at statutory tax rate EBEZEZEHERS (799) (1,732)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ RAHIF AL 2 F KT E 433 1,483
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBTBRAZRB 2 (25) (1)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not wRERARBABIE
recognised EBEZBEVE 1,814 145
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A SE R R ERTIEEE
previously not recognised ZHBEE (597) =
Tax effect of temporary differences not 4 KRR IF =58 2 B 75
recognised A - 5
Tax effects of preferential tax treatment EBEMBER 2B FEHE (660) -
Income tax charge/(credit) PRSTR X (%) 166 (100)
120 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group’s Mobile Game and Application Business relates to
provision of services of games publishing, development of mobile
games and related intellectual property and platform, and mobile
applications carried out by First Surplus, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

On 31 December 2024, the Company deregistered First Surplus
and ceased the operation of the Mobile Games and Application
Business with effect from 31 December 2024.

As the Mobile Game and Application Business represented
a separate major line of business of the Group, the financial
performance of the Mobile Game and Application Business is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as discontinued operation. The comparative figures have been
restated to re-present the financial performance of the Mobile
Game and Application Business for the year ended 31 December
2023 as discontinued operation. The loss for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 from the discontinued operation are
set out below.

B IEREEK
AEENFHRESREREBKERADF
#)3E 2 B I B A BlFirst SurplusiE {5 &
BT M FREERAENSE
MEFE FHERRAAM-

RZZB-_WHF+_A=+—HB KA
FL8HFirst Surplus' WH ZFTZMF+ =
A=Z+—BRELEEFHERRER
ES X

HRFREEREREKALAER —1B
WA B EBER AL FHERRE
BEBHUBRERGEBERRFIE
RERIBREXEBEBEN -HE-ZT
Z=EF+ A=+ —BLEFEOLRE
FEEI - UEHZ2IFHREBRER
EBERERIELCEEBNIMBRE -
HE-_Z_NMFR-T-_=F+=A
=+—HLFE BRIEKEEXEBHNE
BEIImT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

7.

122

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 7. ERULK&EX (&)
2024 2023
—E_NE T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(a) Results of discontinued operation: (a) CRILEEEBEE
Other administrative expenses Hi 7ML (11) (1,982)
Loss from operations IR (11) (1,982)
Finance costs Bl & B A - =
Loss before and after taxation BB AT R BR B 1R 5 18 (11) (1,982)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, &M B A A
constituting as discontinued (BREKRIEEE
operations, net X)) oEBFEE (5,253) =
Loss for the year FEEE (5,264) (1,982)
(b) Loss for the year from (b) REEBKRILELEEKRHN
discontinued operation is arrived FEBBCMR:
at after charging:
Write-off of deposits WiE % © - 1,969
(c) Cash flows from discontinued () RECKRIELEERHN
operation: HeR&:
Net cash used in operating activities, KETEBRAZ
net ReF8 (11) (7)
Net cash used in investing activities WEFESFAZ
ReFHE - _
Net cash used in financing activities REFHMAZ
ReFHE - -
(11) (7)

The Group's loans and interest receivables as at 31 December

2023 arose from the Money Lending Business of providing loans

in Hong Kong with the money lenders licence granted under
Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) held by Aurum Pacific Finance Limited (“AP Finance”), the
then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

FomEF-AS+—BIER

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Due to keen market competition, and the challenging
environment together with the consideration of the risks
associated with the possible default by the loan borrowers, owing
to prolonged impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group did not
renew its money lender licence after the licence expiration on
2 June 2021 and ceased the operation of the Money Lending

Business with effect from September 2021.

As the business operation of the Money Lending Business was a
separate reportable segment prior to the cessation of operation
and considered as a separate major line of business segment of
the Group, it was accounted for as a discontinued operation of
the Group with effect from the year ended 31 December 2021.

On 14 December 2023, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Major Worldwide Holdings Limited (“Major Worldwide"”) which
held the entire interest in AP Finance. The disposal was effected
in order to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s
other businesses. The disposal was completed on 14 December
2023, on which date control of Major Worldwide passed to the
acquirer. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in note
31(b).

7.

1&

ERIEKREER (&)
Etaﬁ%ﬁz?‘lﬂ’]m HEREREBREENIR
BUARZERIERERAMTEELONE
R FACOVID-19Z B2 ETE:
RZE-_—FANA-_HERBRE®RE -
AEBETHEEEREARR £=2F
ZFNAREREEBEE-

HRMEXRTHNERBEELEFELEEL

FMREBBAUE2EOM CHEARAEE
—EBLEBIH REBEE_T - —F

+t=A :+-EI¢¢F£*E)\E§§'JT’E
AEECRIERERS-

=F+ZA+HmMA-KxE
B VEEWZ LNLERBRME
BHEEBEZHNSENBE R FMajor
Worldwide Holdings Limited ( [Major
Worldwide] ) - ETTHEEZE I RESE
ReREUNBEREASENHEMER B
EFER-_ZT_=F+=A+MA (Major
WorldwideHJ 6 B R EZEHE A) T
Ko-FMHEEERABUREEEZD
HEZHBRENHEE3(D) -

Iﬂlﬁll
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 7. BRIEREEK (HF)
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(a) Results of discontinued operations: (a) THRIIEEELEE
Other income, net H g A JF 8 = 80
Reversal of impairment loss on loans FEWE KR B E
and interest receivables BB E 3,841 228
Other administrative expenses HEMiTHAX = (1,044)
Profit/(loss) from operations KEET L (BEA) 3,841 (736)
Finance costs Bl & K AR - =
Profit/(loss) before and after taxation Br AT R BR B 1
wmA (&) 3,841 (736)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEB AR (B
constituting the discontinued BRIEREELE) 2
operations, net W & 5 58 - 3,785
Profit for the year F 5 55 3,841 3,049
(b) Profit for the year from (b) RECKRILEEER
discontinued operation is arrived WEERFEFA:
at after crediting:
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMB AR 2 K=
F R - (3,785)
Reversal of impairment loss on loans FEW B R R BRI E
and interest receivables BR[O (3,841) (228)
() Cash flows from discontinued () REBHKRLEESEER
operations: WRERE
Net cash used in operating activities, Z‘“%xﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂzfﬁi
net FEE = (7)
Net cash from investing activities REZRGMEZEE
g - 5,700
Net cash used in financing activities MmEEBMAZRE
FEE - -
- 5,693
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

8. EEM=

RIEE B D AEGIE383(E - 27 (3
BESEMEER) RO F288 RGEMET
HRAMBRECEEMEMT

Salaries, allowance and Retirement scheme

Directors' fees benefits in kind Contributions Total
Ezme Fe ZMREUAR RARE S M @t
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
“EoME —To=F ZB-WE —T-=F ZB-ME —T-=F ZB-ME —T-=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TER AT TET TEL TET TAT
Executive directors YITES
Liu Guanzhou (Chairman) ~ ZIEM (£ )

(Note 1) (Hrt1) 600 300 - - 27 - 627 300
Choi Pun Lap B - - 240 240 12 12 252 252
Liu Xingmei (Note 2) B|x (H72) 240 20 - - - - 240 20
Chung Man Lai (Note 3) X (fi23) - - - 220 - 11 - 231
Non-executive directors FEHTEE
Li Hui Ling (Note 4) =R (Hit4) 40 - - - - - 40 =
Guan Xiuying (Note 5) BAE (H5) 40 - - - - - 40 =
Independent BYFHTES

non-executive directors
Fu Yan Ming 28 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Lam Yuen Man Maria IS oES 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Tai Chin Ho (Note 6) BT (Hite) 28 60 - - - - 28 60
Xia Qiankun (Note 5) BE (Hfits) 40 - - - - - 40 -

1,228 620 240 460 39 23 1,507 1,103

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive and
independent directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company.

PRATEENMEIZ2ARNAERSE
BEEARARAEENEHNRE - £
AIERTRBUIEENHES T ERNE

BEERRBIEEZMIRHEH IR -

BELEREREREEERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Appointed on 14 April 2023.

2. Appointed on 30 November 2023.
3. Resigned on 30 November 2023.
4. Appointed on 14 February 2023.
5. Appointed on 27 September 2024.

6. Resigned on 14 June 2024.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors and chief
executive officer as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no
directors waived any emoluments during the year (2023: HK$Nil).

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of
the five highest emoluments is a director (2023: Nil) whose

emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the

EEME (&)

Bt

1. RICE-=FNA+MHEERE-

2. R-F_=%+—-H=1+REZE-

3. R-F-=F+—A=1THEE-

4. R-F-_=F_HA+HBAEXRE-

5. REF-MFEFNAA-—TELRERE

6. REZFZMENA+HBARE
BE-_ZT_MER-_F-_=f+=A
St-HUIEFE AEEHRERNERERK
TREBINNE ERIMARTEERK
MAREE R REN K AERBERAE
o \EBFRFAREEAHE (=
To=ZF:TEBT) o

BESHMA L

FEEaFMATER —RAES (=
SEZ=FE) MEBZHSFBRH
AR B TNTNE (ZTE=F:1%)

emoluments in respect of the remaining four individuals (2023: AT ZBEBEOT
five) are as follows:

2024 2023
—E O —E =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Salaries and other emoluments FeREMME 2,962 3,037
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 83 105
3,045 3,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. E&S&HMA L (&)
(CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the four individuals (2023: five) with the MWE(ZZEZ=ZF - A&)BaFMA L
highest emoluments are within the following band: ZHeNFATEHE:
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4HF
Number of Number of
Employees employees
EEAE BB A
HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 T T £1,000,0008 7T 4 5
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no emoluments BHE_Z-_NFE+_A=+—-HILtFE"
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest AEEBWRMAARERIZSFMHAL
emoluments of the Company as an inducement to join or upon SHRHMEEAMALREB R MAREE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. 1BE IR SKERBERAEE -
10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BRELXER
The calculation of basic (loss) or earning per share is based BRERN(EBB)XBANIDZRUAT
on the following loss or profit attributable to owners of the RABEBANERFEEBEEI RN
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary REANBETERRZ INE TS
shares in issue during the year. TE:
2024 2023
ZE-MF —_EZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(Restated)
(#&E7)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ANQ Bl % A A FE15 F &
owners of the Company (BB #F
— From continuing operations - REFELCEED (4,091) (10,402)
— From discontinued operations —REERIELEER (1,419) 1,860
(5.510) (8,542)
BEEGEBRERERAERRA A 127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

128

10. BREE (&)

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 is the same as the basic loss per share as
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024

(a) Basic loss per share (Continued) (a) SFRELXE#HE (&)
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
Number of Number of
shares shares
RBE B & 8B
‘000 ‘000
TR F &
(Restated)
(wE5)
Weighted average number of ordinary FRE 1T E B 2
shares in issue during the year niE 236,072 146,843
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the RAETREAEBEEMS #HEZ
year ended 31 December 2024 for the purpose of basic loss EoMEFT_A=+—HIEFED
per share has been retrospectively adjusted for the effects TERMNETHHEERR TN
of the Share Consolidation under Capital Reorganisation FXANBTANEREHEATHR
(as defined in note 27(a)) completed on 8 July 2024 and MEf(EERME270)) 2
the bonus element of the rights issue of shares during the rEEZFT_NF+ZA=+—H
year ended 31 December 2024 which was completed in EFERZZ_NENATARH
August 2024. The basic loss per share for the year ended P& A% 13 B9 4T AR 56 0 VBt 1B 39 58 2 -
31 December 2023 was restated, as the weighted average BAREERMETFOHERRZZ
number of ordinary shares has been retrospectively adjusted “HENAR+TREBREAMKRAEMR
for the effects of the Share Consolidation under Capital THRHDEHFER=_Z-_MEFE/\A
Reorganisation completed on 15 August 2024 and the TERK A L AR AR 10 MO AT AR 2B 5 B 52 &
bonus element of the rights issue of shares in August 2024. FHENAE WEBEE_T_=F
TZA=+T-HLEFENEGRER
BiEETE -
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) ZREBEER

HASIEAMEEEET TR
BHE_T-_NFER-T_=F+=
A=+ BLHEEZ2SREEER
BERERNEEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_HNF+_A=+—BLTFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

M YR -BERSKE

Computers
Motor Leasehold Furniture and other
vehicles Improvements and fixtures equipment Total
BHR
RE HENEEELE  EAREE Hin e @t
TET AR TET TET FHET
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2023 R-_ZE-=%—HF—H - 267 265 866 1,398
Additions "E = - 67 74 141
Written off s - = (14) (1) (25)
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F
1 January 2024 +tZA=+-RBk
“Z-NFE—-F—H - 267 318 929 1,514
Additions NE 351 - 4 165 520
Written off ik - S (1) (13) (14)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE-ZME+A
=+—-H 351 267 321 1,081 2,020
Accumulated depreciation and i FERFEFE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—F—H - 233 191 670 1,094
Charge for the year AEEMR - 34 27 108 169
Eliminated on written off i ikiclsa ke - S (13) (8) 21
Impairment losses REBE - - 113 159 272
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=F
1 January 2024 +ZR=+—-HEK
—E-_NFE—-A—H = 267 318 929 1,514
Charge for the year AEEMR 57 = = 29 86
Eliminated on written off B3 8 4 = = (1 (13) (14)
Impairment losses mEBRE = = 4 138 142
Exchange difference EXER (1 S = (2) (3)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_NF
+=A=1+-AH 56 267 321 1,081 1,725
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-NF
+=A=1+-H 295 - - - 295
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+-A=+—~H - - 5 5 =
BELTEEREREBRGR QA 129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

11.

130

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2024

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
have conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets which are used in the Group’s business. In view of
the unfavorable operating results from sales of products on an
e-commerce platform and provision of advertising e-commerce
and supply chain management services, the management of the
Group estimated the recoverable amount for the CGU of the
Group’ business for these services. Based on the results of the
impairment assessment, the management estimated that the
Group’s business for sales of products on an e-commerce platform
and provision of advertising e-commerce and supply chain
management services would not generate significant amount of
positive net cash inflows in the future and hence the recoverable
amounts of the relevant property, plant and equipment belonging
to the Group’'s business for sales of products on an e-commerce
platform and provision of advertising e-commerce and supply
chain management services were insignificant. Accordingly,
impairment losses on these assets used in the Group's business
for sales of products on an e-commerce platform and provision of
advertising e-commerce and supply chain management services
of HK$142,000 have been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2024 to fully write down the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment, excluding motor vehicles, for
these two CGUs.

The recoverable amounts of motor vehicles were determined
based on fair values less costs of disposal with reference to
observable market prices of similar assets. In estimating the
fair value of the motor vehicle, the highest and best use of the
motor vehicles is their current use. The fair value measurement is
categorised into Level 3 fair value hierarchy. Based on the results
of the impairment assessment, no impairment loss was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2024 within the relevant
functions to which these assets relate during the year.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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11.

ME-BERZE (FE)

BE-—F-_NWE+=-HA=+—H
IEFE
RIBEHR AR ESHARNAER
EBOmE BRELRSBRERAEEE
Z e @ REETREN G ZEIR
EFRBTFAHEEMRREESS
BAEFERBEBECEEBERE X&
EEREGTASERSELRSES
BAMAKRESE ERRETHER
EREGAARARAEBRETELETEA
HEEMMREESETEE REEE
ERRBEBIEELERELERE R
AFHE HBRASERETAB TS
HEEMMREESETEE REEE
ERRBEFB2AEDE BEREE
ZAIWESBETAEKN Bt ALER
EFRBTAHEEMRRHRESS
BAEMHEEEERSEGSARSE
ERRMERE142,0008 tE RNEE =
TN FE+_A=+—BILEFEBERI
B R EMEARCELEENHME-
WE R m ORBERIN) 2REE -

ABEZAIRBSHERERBEEZA
BEMBER BAFERKEE/KALE
FoHEMHAEQATER TENEE R
REARAHEENAR QA TFEFER
BAIMBATEEMR BB RETHHE
R BEZZE-_MF+=ZA=+—AHLt
FE - FALERZEEEMS XHIE
WATE B MR E S -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
have conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets which are used in the Group’s business for software
platform services. In view of the unfavorable operating results
from that business, the management of the Group estimated
the recoverable amount for the CGU of the Group’ business
for software platform services. The recoverable amount of the
CGU has been determined based on value-in-use calculation.
The discount rate in measuring the amount of value in use was
16%. Based on the results of the impairment assessment, the
management estimated that the Group’s business for software
platform services would not generate significant amount of
positive net cash inflows in the future and hence the recoverable
amounts of the relevant property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets belonging to the Group's business for software
platform services were insignificant. Accordingly, impairment
losses on these assets used in the Group's business for software
platform services of HK$272,000 and HK$1,278,000 (2022:
HK$nil) respectively have been recognised for the year ended
31 December 2023 to fully write down the carrying amounts
of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
respectively.

M. YR -BERKE (FE)

BE-—F-_=F+=-H=+—-H
IEFE
RIBEHR AR ESHARNAER
BHTFaRBEBOYE BEREE
K fF FA ¥ B BE 2 T YL [B) € BB TTOR (B AT
- ERFNZEBRKEERBRRE £&
BEEEEMTAEBEGFaRBEER
ReELAEMMAIKE2E - REEE
Bz Al & BB TR BRE B B AT
EET EFAEESENMEXA
16% - ERRMEFTEE R EEE M
ARAEEARGFaRBEBTISEL
REFHRSRAFE ABRAEE
BHTaRBEB2EEYE BE R
BERFEAEEEZATRB GBI TE
KB AEBMREFERBEEB
A#ZESEE/NREEE272,000% T &
1,278,0008 L (ZE_ZF :THFT)H
ReRBE—E-—=+-A=+—8
L FEBRUD BIBEEMOR D E - B E
REEREREEEZEEE:.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 12. EFRAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FET
Cost R AR
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=%6—HF—A8 1,671
Additions wNE 1,534
Derecognition BRI TER (1,671)
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8"
31 December 2024 “EomME-A—-BAR
“E-WE+-_A=+—H 1,534
Accumulated depreciation and EHERRBEER
impairment loss
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—H—H 1,064
Charge for the year KEENR 790
Eliminated on derecognition Th 4% | TSR A 8E (1,598)
Impairment loss A& 1,278
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—8"
31 December 2024 —EomME-A-BRK
—EmMF+-—RA=+—H 1,534

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2024

At 31 December 2023

BR T &
RZE-—_WF+=-_A=+—H _

RZE-=F+=-HA=+—H =

132 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group has obtained the right to use certain properties as its
office premises through tenancy agreements. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 years (2023: 2 years). None of the
leases include variable lease payments.

For short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) the Group recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the

lease.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash
flows comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$1,595,000 and
HK$804,000 (2023: HK$44,000 and HK$828,000) in operating
and financing activities respectively.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in

note 23.

12. FHEEE (&)

AEBCDERHERZEBSETYWEL
EREERENRAZENE -ZEFHER
BNEAR _—F(ZF_=F:_F)-
ZEMEHTEEARBEENK-

HEREE (RERBEHBA12(E A A
THHRE)ME AEEREHRRER
EEBRAEENRRELNZ -

7)'7|J)\Z imE%E’]éﬁ%ﬁ ?ﬁ f?é%
&rﬁﬁéiﬂﬂfﬂﬁ’ﬁﬁ Iﬁ%muﬁ’f?\}uﬂ)/%
1,595,000/% JT % 804,000 L (=&

Z =% : 44,000/ 7T % 828,000/ 7T ) ©

HMEBBEZHRAOTHBHRNM E23 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

13. GOODWILL 13. &8
Sales of Mobile
Software products - games and
platform Yimeirui applications Total
SHEEM — FHRER
BHETEA Yimeirui kER st
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2023, RZTEZ=F
31 December 2023 and —A—8-
1 January 2024 —E =
+TZA=+—HBRK
—E - UF
—H—H 20,236 - 89,433 109,669
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4z 88 — R Bl @ 2 & = 9 = 9
Deregistration of subsidiaries 7t 5 B 2 & - - (89,433) (89,433)
31 December 2024 RZTZPF
+=-A=+—8 20,236 9 - 20,245
Accumulated impairment &R E
At 1 January 2023 .
—H—H 18,508 = 89,433 107,941
Impairment loss VERE R 1,728 - - 1,728
Deregistration of subsidiaries 7t 341 & A 7 - = (89,433) (89,433)
At 31 December 2023 and R-ZT-=4
1 January 2024 +ZA=+—8K
—ZE-OF
—H—H 20,236 - - 20,236
Impairment loss REEE - = = =
At 31 December 2024 N-ZE-ME
+=-A=+—8H 20,236 - - 20,236
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2024 N-ZZE_NE
+=-A=+—8H - 9 - 9
At 31 December 2023 RZTB_=F
+=-—A=+—8 = = = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

13. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units

3. B& (&)
FEHREAEBREFGEFEARR

("CGUs") identified according to country of operation and BES BRI RESELEN ([BEE
operating segment as follows: EEBEA])  FBERT
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F# T
Software platform — Hong Kong L
("Software Platform”) (T&®HFEE]) - =
Sales of products — Yimeirui $HEE M — Yimeirui 9 =
9 -

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as follows:

Sales of products — Yimeirui (Note 31(d))

The recoverable amount of the CGU as at 31 December 2024
is determined based on the value-in-use calculation under the
income approach, which includes the discounted cash flows
sourced from the financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount rate of
approximately 14.55% that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

The revenue growth rate within five-year period is 3.0%. The cash
flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated using
a steady 3.0% per annum growth rate. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market. The
recoverable amount of the CGU based on its value in use was
estimated to be approximately HK$628,000 as at 31 December
2024. Hence, no impairment loss was recognised in respect of
goodwill as of 31 December 2024.

BEHEBZHLELENZHE
B w5t
EFECRBEBLTERFEIGRIEE
BE|EHEEZEREE WTHAR:

HEZEan — Yimeirui (K17£31(d))
RZZE_WNE+_A=+—RB BeE
B 7 P E S EIRE K AERE R
BEZHAEET RDEXRBEREMM
HERERTFHEZUBEE 22 ALRR
i//\b% J//\&&E&Iﬁﬁ i’%iTi%mH—IFEj
BEZIHRReELEBEUSARRZ
Tt AT AL IR FE4)14.55% o

FFBHZBEEREAR30% BRAF
HrRERECHKABEFEREINHE
HoZiERENBBMSEZ R FHHE
EEX-RZZZNMFE+ZA=+—H 'R
BERABEFEZREELEBEN 2K
[B] 4 %8 {5 51 49 /2628,00078 7T ° B It &
EZTE_NFF+ZA=+—H TER
EEERRERIE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

13. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

136

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

Software platform

The recoverable amount of the CGU as at 31 December 2023
was determined based on the value-in-use calculation under
the income approach, which included the discounted cash flows
sourced from the financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period, and the pre-tax discount rate of
approximately 16% that reflected current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period were based on
the expected revenue from existing and potential customers
throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-
year period had been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% per
annum growth rate. The growth rate did not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the market.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the
CGU were as follows:
Budgeted market The values assigned to the assumption
share reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with
the directors’ estimation of the revenue
from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned revenue
growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.
Number of service In order to maintain successive business
contracts operations of the CGU, the directors
believe that there is no particular difficulty
in renewal of the service contracts of the
existing customers in the CGU.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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13. B& (&)

BEHBZHELELENZHE
R (4&)

BHtFE
RZEZ=F+ZA=+—HB BHeE
A BNz T IR Bl & B8 AR AR R A KR
BEZTEET BREREETEEMIL
ERERTFHECVBREEZ2MIRIR
EREB-UERBRETSEEEEH
BEZIAGERREELBNEERRZ
TATBEIR K 416% o

NEESH2 RS RERAEREER
HBMRARE REETS 2 BEKE
fEH - BBEFMLRERRERAE
R E30%EE RERETHB
Lk PA L ESCE TR

R EE2 EAEAE AL E
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BRAEEZEBERMRE
k=t Tk (EREZRRN)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

13. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

Software platform (Continued)

Based on the results for the aforesaid impairment assessments,
due to the continual increase of expected other operating
expenses in the budget period as a result of expected continual
increases in manpower costs due to the manpower shortage in
the relevant labour market experienced in 2023, impairment loss
of HK$1,728,000 was recognised in respect of goodwill as of 31
December 2023. As a result, the carrying amount of the CGU
was reduced and became the same as its recoverable amount of

HK$Nil as at 31 December 2023.

Mobile games and applications
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has
deregistered its subsidiaries engaged in the Mobile Games and

Application Business.

13. B& (&)

BEHBZHELELENVZHE
R (4&)

BHFE (E)
BELRBEFHEOER R =
TZFHBESHITMEANERERA
JIRR 7N TE HR 3% 4B G 0 - TE AR H A AC 2 B
TREEHMBEL N B2 ==
F+ A=+ BCHREERRES
81,728,000 - AL - ZB e EE S
MR -—_E-_=F+-A=+—EB0HET
SHERLTEGKECEER 5T
i

=
=

FrERRER
HE-Z-_MF+_A=+—HLFE"
AEEEFHENEFHERREREY
W B AR -
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BHE-ZT-_NF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

138

14. B EE

Mobile
games and
Trademark application Total
BE FREERER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET
Cost AR
At 1 January 2023, WZZTZ=%—HA—81"
31 December 2023 and —E-=%+=H8
1 January 2024 =t+—BR-_ZT M4
—H—H - 69,783 69,783
Additions (Note 31(d)) NE (MiE31(d)) 33 - 33
Deregistration of subsidiaries EXL NG = (69,783) (69,783)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE_WFE+_H
=+—H 33 S 33
Accumulated amortisation Rt REEEE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2023, WZZEZ=%—H—81"
31 December 2023 and —T-=%+=H8
1 January 2024 —t—BAR-_ZT_MNF
—A—H - - -
Amortisation 5 - 69,783 69,783
Deregistration of subsidiaries EXLLlENG = (69,783) (69,783)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZZEZNE+= A
=+—H = - -
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2024 MR-ZTEZNE+ A
=+—H 33 S 33

At 31 December 2023

RZEZ=F+=A
=+—H

*  Below HK$1,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

15. FE W AR =% I H i & 1K

2024 2023

—E-OEF —_E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT F# T
Gross amount of trade receivables FEUR AR 3R B 5R 2,313 6,535
Less: loss allowance W IR (245) (3,958)
2,068 2,577
Gross amount of other receivables E e W s B R 4,082 323
Less: loss allowance W B (37) =
4,045 323
Deposits Ze 566 222
Value added tax receivables, net JE Uk 18 (F T SRR 562 -
Prepayments SEENE 11,236 2,383
18,477 5,505

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenses within one year (2023:
except certain deposits and prepayments of HK$222,000 which

were expected to be recovered in 2025).

In addition, as disclosed in note 16, loan receivables amounting
to HK$3,841,000 were fully impaired prior to the disposal of
the money lending segment during the year ended 31 December
2023. Pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement
for disposal of such segment, any subsequent recovery of these
loan receivables by the acquirer shall be returned to the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the acquirer recovered
the full amount of HK$3,841,000. Accordingly, the amount was
reclassified from loan receivables to other receivables in the

consolidated financial statements.

The prepayments include HK$3,863,000 for hardware
procurement, licenses and testing fees related to the software
platform business segment (2023: HK$1,085,000) and

HK$7,056,000 for sales of products business (2023: HK$Nil).

AREB A EREKRZR R E U RTE
AR —FRKEHERERAZ (ZF
—=ZF & EA222,0008 L HE TiZ
T RENFIERIN BEEHBER=2Z
—HFWKRE) -

AN BT EE16FTINE BE—T_=F
+Z A=+ BLHEE - REERES
B AT - FE UL E 23,841,000/ T B B H AT
RBE- RBELEZOBNEEHEZ
R W H E B E 2 M7 E R R
BEXYBEREFASEE-BE_ZT -1
F+_A=+—BLEEE KWBHEE
UL @ 7R 1E 3,841,000 7T ° A I - 5% 3K
BRGEMBREPHERERET S
EAE MR-

BNFEREESHTa¥(Ks HAH
MRS 5T T 5 OBl E & 3,863,000
BT (ZE-=4:1,0850008 1) %
Y EE M ¥T7,056,0008 T (B ==
FEEL) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

15.

16.

140

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,

is as follows:

15.

FE W Rk e B A B WK (4]

iy
BERSHR BREFREHEZAH
RIIGRERBEB 2 Rk DTMT

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 month DR —1E A 443 987
More than 1 but less than 3 months BE—@ABRLIR=@A 522 988
More than 3 but less than 6 months BE=EAELRKEA 365 331
More than 6 but less than 12 months BENEABELINR+T=M@A 738 271
2,068 2,577

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade receivables are set out in note 28(a).

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loans and interest receivables at the beginning of the
year ended 31 December 2023 arose from the Money Lending
Business, which has been classified as discontinued operation
in September 2021 as a result of the Group’s cessation of the
operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the balances were
recognised upon the completion of disposal of subsidiaries
as set out in note 31(b). Under the terms set out in the
disposal agreement, a loan receivable of principal amount of
HK$3,841,000 was assigned from AP Finance to the Group upon
the completion of the disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

FomEF-AS+—BIER

16. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Loan receivables amounting to HK$3,841,000 were fully impaired
prior to the disposal of the money lending segment during the
year ended 31 December 2023. Pursuant to the terms of the
sale and purchase agreement for such disposal, any subsequent
recovery of these loan receivables by the acquirer shall be
returned to the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the acquirer recovered the full amount of HK$3,841,000.
Accordingly, the amount was reclassified from loan receivables to
other receivables in the consolidated financial statements.

16. R ER

ARFE (&)

é@ T =F+ZA=+—HLEFE"

R & BB 5 EB AT - FE 1K & 3K3,841,000
BTEEHIRAE - BEZHESE
WEEWZ 2GR WEFERKEZ
FAZEEREFRHARETAER-
BHE-Z-_WF+=-A=+—HIEFE"
U ig 5 BB SR B 3k 783,841,000/8 7T
it ZAERNRETBEREP B ER
BREH S EAEMER -

2024 2023

“ECmE —Eo=F

Loan Interest Loan Interest
Portion Portion Total Portion Portion Total
Ex®a ANEHD Az ER#EH  MEHHS @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERL TERL THET THET THET
Unsecured loans BERER - - 3,841 = 3,841
- - 3,841 - 3,841
Less: loss allowance B ERE - = (3,841) S (3,841)

Loan receivables as at 31 December 2023 were interest free
and repayable on maturity dates under the terms in contractual
agreements or on demand in writing by the Group.

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired was assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparties’ default rates.

Further details on the Group’'s credit policy are set out in note
28(a).

1&

R-ZE-_=Ff+-_A=1t—H EKE
AR TR YHAEERIHARE
aHTﬁ%mﬂ%?&%&%ﬁxﬂiéic

00 A SO (2 P R R R 2
HESEEMIHHROEZBEAR
fERF{ -

EHRAEEGFERRNEZFE
28(a) °

£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

17. INVENTORIES 17. 7
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Finished goods held for resale — at cost FEEE 2 8 m — KA 10,034 -
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18. RERREFEYRHEMR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION TREEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at (a) MHERITRFEREZHEE
bank and on hand REZ2ZEY
As at 31 December 2024, the cash and cash equivalents of RZBZWFE+=—A=+—A0 &
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to SENUARB(TARB]GEZ
approximately HK$5,767,000 (2023: HK$1,000). The RMB is RekReEEWRS,767,000%
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under T(ZTEZ=%:1,00087T) - A
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and RETHERIBREZEEMER R
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign i - AR 3 R B A i 2 S0 E B IR R
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange AR AERE - BERNEEEHT
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to REE B BEREETINERER
conduct foreign exchange business. ZRITBAREHBREMBER -
142 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 1. BRERBEEEEYREME

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

ERBEH (&)
(b) EBEZBHELZEEHK

TRENAEEKXRBRETH A
EEH(BRASLIFRSEH)
HE- BERMEAPELZREBERE
ReRnBIARKRREREBELRE
BraRleRERTHOERBER
PR ZREREZEE

Interest- Amount
bearing duetoa Lease
borrowings director liabilities Total
ER—fEE
Wt S B R HEER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER TER THET
(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 23)
(Hit21) (Hit22) (Hfit23)
At 1 January 2023 R-Z-=%-A-H 3,808 - 622 4,430
Changes from financing cash flows: BEFHREEFELE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHAEMRE 7KL H D - = (800) (800)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BNAEMRE 2 FI LD - - (28) (28)
Interest paid ERFIE (862) = = (862)
New loans from a third party REE=FZHER 7,356 = = 7,356
Repayment of other loans BEAMER (10,374) = = (10,374)
Advance from a director EZHN = 2,852 = 2,852
(3,880) 2,852 (828) (1,856)
Other changes: Hitt2g:
Increase in lease liabilities from FUFHEEEY
entering into new leases HEBEEM - - 1,534 1,534
Decrease in lease liabilities from RAKIEREEE Y
early termination of lease HEBEMD = - (73) (73)
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FERE (H3t50)) 862 = 28 890
862 - 1,489 2,351
At 31 December 2023 R-—B-=%+=A
=t+-H 790 2,852 1,283 4,925
BELTEEREREBRGR QA 143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

18. RERREEFEYREMR
ERBEH (&)

(b) EREZHELZREEHK

(#&)
Interest- Amount
bearing due to a Lease

borrowings director liabilities Total

EN-UES
WEER AR HEEE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TER

(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 23)
(#tiE21) (Hi322) (Hfi323)

At 1 January 2024 R-E-ME-F-H 790 2,852 1,283 4,925
Changes from financing cash flows: REZFBHRERELE
Capital element of lease rentals paid BNAERE 2 A& H D = = (757) (757)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREEME 2 F S - - (47) (47)
Interest paid ERFIE (287) - - (287)
Repayment of other loans BEEEMER (50) = = (50)
Repayment to a director REZEN - (2,850) - (2,850)
(337) (2,850) (804) (3,991)

Other changes: Hit2s:
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FEHZ (Hit5a) 287 - 47 334
At 31 December 2024 RZZB-WE+ZA

=t-H 740 2 526 1,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

19. R BRI E A B A3 3K

2024 2023

—E-MF —T-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Trade payables FERTRR SR 1,806 =
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H M ER R 3,721 846
5,527 846

All trade and other payables are expected to be settled within

one year or repayable on demand.

Included in trade payables, amount of approximately
HK$1,412,000 was related to sales of products business as at 31

December 2024 (2023: HK$Nil).

Included in other payables, amount of approximately
HK$2,440,000 was related to unpaid legal and professional fee as

at 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$449,000).

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

These represent receipt in advance of performance under

FfT 7B FE A B SR B L P S SRTB RS 0 —
FRBERREREER-

R-FE-_NE+=-_A=+—8 ENE
491,412,000 TR EERER
BEB(—ZE_=F:TBx)-

W_ZE-_WNE+-_/F=+—H HiE
K ER - #92,440,0005 7T B R R 2 R
HEBHAEW (T = =4F:449,000/
JT) e

20. SHEE

HZETRRBEEPHAUTEBILZA

contracts with customers related to the following business: HIETBATEWSKIA
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Software platform gHTa 7,821 6,641
Sales of products HEEM 16,410 £

Provision of advertising e-commerce and REEEEFEBE K HERE
supply chain management services BEERS 5,347 =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 29,578 6,641
BEEGEBRERERAERRA A 145
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mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

146

Software platform

When the Group receives a deposit before the service commences,
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract
until the revenue recognised on the project exceeds the amount
of the deposits. The Group typically receives a certain deposit,
which is negotiated on case-by-case basis with customers, on
acceptance of IT service contracts.

Sales of products

When the Group receives deposits from customers prior to the
delivery of products, such amounts are recognised as contract
liabilities. These contract liabilities are subsequently recognised as
revenue when the products are delivered to customers and titles
have been passed which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods. The Group typically receives
deposits based on terms negotiated with customers on an order-
by-order basis.

Provision of advertising e-commerce and supply
chain management services

When the Group receives deposits from customers prior to
the provision of advertising e-commerce and supply chain
management services, such amounts are recognised as contract
liabilities. These contract liabilities are subsequently recognised
as revenue when services are rendered to the customers. The
Group typically receives deposits based on terms negotiated with
customers on an order-by-order basis.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 20. EHNEE (&)
2024 2023
ZENEF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January wn—A—H 6,641 7,361
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FHREFANERRFEWTA
recognising revenue during the year that ERNEBEZREEREDN
was included in the contract liabilities at B ER D
the beginning of the year (5,876) (6,138)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ~ FHRA A 4B T B4 B W IE
billing in advance of performance under BHAEHNEEEN
contracts 67,606 14,428
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HREFABRIANEE
recognising revenue in respect of the new  HHEEKRFZEH &V EER D
contract liabilities entitled during the year (38,793) (9,010)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 29,578 6,641

The amount of receipt in advance of performance expected to be
recognised as revenue after more than one year is approximately
HK$81,000 (2023: HK$65,000).

BHERE —FRERBKFE ZELHE
WA S A A81,0008 T (T ==
165,000/ 7T ) ©
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

21. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The interest-bearing borrowings are repayable within one year or

on demand (including those with repayable on demand clause).

B S5 =X
8 A AR — B SR E R B
(BREREREREERERZER) -

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Loan from a third party RKE—RBE=ZFZEX 740 790

The maturity of interest-bearing borrowings, based on the

scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, is as

MEERERERGEMBTAETERA
HiZ BRI :

follows:
2024 2023
—E_mEF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Within 1 year —FR 740 790

Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in

note 28(c).

The interest-bearing borrowings at 31 December 2024 and 2023

were unsecured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

22. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 22 B —fNEEERK
2024 2023
—E-MEF —EZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Amount due to a director A — (I EEEER 2 2,852
The amount due to director, who is also a shareholder with B —NEE(HETABEARRQA
29.07% (2023: 29.07%) shareholding interest in the Company, 29.07% (ZZT - =4%:29.07% ) IREH
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and without fixed repayment RE)ARFAEER THEAEEEE
terms. EIER -
23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRETAEEHESGBE 2B EOH
the Group's lease liabilities: MR
2024 2023
—E_NE —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 1 year —F A 526 757
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEREWMERA - 526
526 1,283
BEEEEBREBRERBR A A 149
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, UET%IE
The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RAFER RiEa BRI K ERNIE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements ERIEAGEAKS Y REeIMT
during the year are as follows:
Deferred tax arising from: REBIEEEF -
Right-of-use Lease
assets liabilities Total
EREEE HEAE #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2023 W-ZE-=4#—HF—8 100 - 100
Credited to profit or loss FFAER (100) - (100)

At 31 December 2023,
1 January 2024 and
31 December 2024

—A—BRk=ZZ-mE
+=—A=+—H -

As at 31 December 2024 the

of approximately HK$60,903,000 (2023: HK$63,725,000). The

Group has not recognised defe
unutilised tax losses and ded
respect of lease liabilities and

Group has cumulative tax losses

rred tax assets in relation to these
uctible temporary differences in
deferred benefit plan obligations

RZZE-_WNE+ZA=+—RA &=
B R & T IE 18 4 /860,903,000 7T
(Z& - =4:63,725,000% t)
R I HOR EE M AEE L Ept
ZEADABBEEBEREEEEARER

=D
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amounting to HK$1,453,000 (2023: HK$2,135,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses of
HK$59,887,000 (2023: HK$60,757,000) have no expiry date
under the current tax legislation, the remaining amount is expired
in five years after 2024. Other temporary differences are not
material.
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AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

25. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately, and there
are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group to

reduce the existing level of contribution.

Hong Kong employees that have been employed continuously
for at least five years are entitled to long service payments in
accordance with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance under
certain circumstances. These circumstances include where an
employee is dismissed for reasons other than serious misconduct
or redundancy, that employee resigns at the age of 65 or above,
or the employment contract is of fixed term and expires without
renewal. The amount of LSP payable is determined with reference
to the employee’s final salary (capped at $22,500) and the years
of service, reduced by the amount of any accrued benefits derived
from the group’s contributions to MPF scheme, with an overall
cap of $390,000 per employee. Currently, the Group does not
have any separate funding arrangement in place to meet its LSP
obligation.

25.

REZmTERK
REBBEEB LG F4855 58 5l 1% D
et alRi AR EERBHRIEEZ
AlEEE 2 XERER Y —HBHER
BEETE ([REeTEl]) -BEEETE
ARHEHBUSTABTEZEEHNR
Ketgl-RiEsEesta BEERHEES
EBEKREBMBBAWRA Z5%M T 8 #
HoEmATRAEANAZ30,000% 7T -
SEMEFEREE UEAXSEETAR
WIRIR B HFOKFERE RN -

REFEBELAT BEXBEZELEFNE
BREERBEBEBGNERESRE
e ZEBAREREARENE
TEAREE EBER6SHEIN EHFR
B SE B A LB E T AR M E B &
I 8 4B 20 2 S TR A 4 R U o FE N R AP
fREeNeBI2EEERKT e (L
PR /22,5007 7T ) K& AR 7% 48 B - R & [ 5t
BESHERFIMEEANENREERESR
THETE BEEBMNMA LR A390,000
B BA ARBENESETERMEFE
SLHUABITERBARBEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

25. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS

152

(CONTINUED)

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which will eventually abolish the statutory right of an
employer to reduce its LSP payable to a Hong Kong employee by
drawing on its mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme. The
Government has subsequently announced that the Amendment
Ordinance will come into effect from 1 May 2025. Separately,
the Government introduced a subsidy scheme to assist employers
after the abolition. Among other things, once the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer
use any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory MPF
contributions (irrespective of the contributions made before, on
or after 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”)) to reduce the LSP
in respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date.
However, where an employee’s employment commenced before
the Transition Date, the employer can continue to use the above
accrued benefits to reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s
service up to that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated based on
the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date. The Group has
accounted for the offsetting mechanism and its abolition.

The movements in the present value of unfunded obligations are
as follows:

25.

REZmEER (&)

RZEBEZZFRA BFEERAEE
ATIED ZIE D R EREEZNETE

R BB BIRRE RS &8sk
"R BRILEENEEREENRERE
- BMNBEESHETKIBERZF
—HFRA—BEK B BRFERE
BrigfE A ET EI A BB EE - HAp - —
BEREERIETBETATBFEA
HEBEsRFIMER (TR Z2ZE=A
FRA—RB([BEBH]))ZA - EBR
ZHRENHEHFOMEENZERE K
KINEEABERHEMEHRENE
HRES - AMm ESNBEEBEAE
TE-BEAHESHALBRREEZ N
EMZEEEEZBMREERENRES
RIS & 5 o RBE B iR FTIE AR 75
WEHRESEREREENZEBER
Haiz AHFREZ%ZA L2 RIS FRET
H-ALEDBEEES R EERAA
SERE -

REFREERELBHWT

2024 2023

—E-MEF =%

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January: ®n—H—H 852 751
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: RIERPEROMST

Current service cost ?é?,ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁiﬁ 50 78

Interest cost F B A 25 23

75 101

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 927 852

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
at 31 December 2024 is 10 years (2023: 10.2 years).
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AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

25. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
The above expenses are recognised in the following line items in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

25. REZ

A ERX RS

MBEBMNDNA:

merEEE (F)

18z

HRMIATIER R

2024 2023

—E_mE B -=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Cost of sales & AR 15 10
Administrative expenses THRX 11 15
Research and development expenses EEF X 39 66
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko KA 10 10
75 101

Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted

EERERK (CAMEFHHEERT) K&

averages) and sensitivity analysis are as follows: RESTMAT
2024 2023
—E_E —Eg=-=
Discount rate AR IR = 3% 3%
Future salary increases RRITLEW R 3% 3%
Expected investment return on offsetable ARERES REESTEN
MPF accrued benefits &% & Bl # 1% 1%
BEETEBREREBRERA 153
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

25. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligation
would have increased/decreased as a result of 2% change in the
significant actuarial assumptions:

Increase in 2%

25. REZHTEIZEH (F)

O AT BB AR E X 5 2% A S a0 4R |
BERBEBRRT2%HEimigm, &

A

Decrease in 2%

B IN2% HWP2%

2024 2023 2024 2023

—BoOmE T ZF-NE _—_T_=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET TET FET

Discount rate BhIR & (2) (26) 11 36
Future salary increases RRIEEER 1 5 (1) (6)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that TR FRESTREERNBREBERRE

changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the
actuarial assumptions.

The employees of a subsidiary in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC. The subsidiary
is required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the
basic salary of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme represents the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately, there is no forfeited contributions
that may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.
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AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

On 8 May 2013, the Company passed an ordinary resolution at
the annual general meeting regarding the termination of the
old share option scheme which was adopted on 25 November
2003 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
board of directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant
share options to the eligible participants including any employees,
directors, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any
person in the sole discretion of the board of directors for the
primary purpose to recognise and motivate their contributions to
the Group.

On 29 April 2016, the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the extraordinary general meeting to amend the definition of
“Eligible Participant” of the New Share Option Scheme and the
definition of “Invested Entity” be added to the New Share Option
Scheme (“Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme”).

Unless it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company, the maximum number of shares available for
subscription under Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme
or any other option scheme adopted by the Company is subject
to:

i The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted under
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time to time;
and

ii.  The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under Amendments
to the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue at the date of the approval of
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme/at the date
of passing the relevant resolution in general meeting.
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26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

156

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholders in
general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options under Amendments to the New Share
Option Scheme to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
must be approved by independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the
proposed grantee of the options).

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
in any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer of the option. The consideration
for a grant of options by the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the board of
directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the board
of directors providing that the price shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets on the date of the
offer, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024
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27.

25 June 2018.

2023.

26. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26. URAEE 2RO Z (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
The total number of share options that could be granted was AR 2 BB AR RE 42 8 PR 538,179,000
limited to 38,179,000 shares at par value of HK$0.01 each, BEEEREmECOIETLZERG R _F
representing approximately 10% of the total issued shares of the —NERBE-+tRAEABERAFEASES
Company on the date of passing the resolution to refresh the FPHHEREAZ IR ZAZEERARN
New Share Option Scheme limit at the annual general meeting on NEIZEBETIRDBEEL10%
No share option under the Old Share Option Scheme or BE-—_T-_NER-—_ZT-—=F+-A
Amendments to the New Share Option Scheme was granted SH—HIFEER CEBEERRE
or outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2024 and b of 37 B AR AR S RIS ETHE W ok 1Y R 1T
2 AR HE -
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27. BA R G
(a) Share capital (a) B#*
Authorised and issued share capital E TR TR
Number
of shares Amount
BB B ok}
‘000 HK$'000
T & FET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2023 and RZEZ=F—A—AK
31 December 2023, ordinary shares —ZE—-_=Z#+—-A=+—H"
of HK$0.04 each R EEO0.04/%8 T2 EimAk 3,000,000 120,000
Decrease in number of authorized e EERDE B
shares upon Share Consolidation B (B Eti)a))
(note (i)(a)) (2,700,000) -
Increase in number of authorized D FEEERDE B
shares upon Share Sub-division (B EEG) )
(note (i)(c)) 11,700,000 -
At 31 December 2024, RZZ-—WE+=—A=+—8H"
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREEC.OB T LB 12,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRABR:
At 1 January 2023 and RZEZ=F—HA—A8K
31 December 2023, ordinary shares —ZT-_=F+=-F=+—H"
of HK$0.04 each SRAEEC.04B Ly LB 1,272,640 50,906
Decrease in number of shares upon &) & G RRD B R D
Share Consolidation (note (i)(a)) (KBat(i)a)) (1,145,376) =
Decrease in share capital upon HI R & N 18 IR AR
Capital Reduction (note (i)(b)) (BT 3)(b)) - (49,633)
Rights issue (note (ii)) AR (K7 aE0E)) 254,528 2,545
At 31 December 2024, RZZE-WFE+=-A=+—8H"
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEC.OIE T2 LB 381,792 3,818
BEAEERIZEREBBR A A 157
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

158

(a) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)
Notes:

(i) On 8 July 2024, the capital reorganisation (“Capital
Reorganisation”) implemented by the Company was completed

which involved:

(a) share consolidation whereby every ten issued and unissued
existing shares of par value of HK$0.04 each would be
consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of

HK$0.4 each (the “Share Consolidation”);

(b) capital reduction whereby any fractional consolidated share
in the issued share capital of the Company arising from the
share consolidation would be cancelled, and the par value
of each issued consolidated share would be reduced from
HK$0.4 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$0.39 on each issued consolidated share

("Capital Reduction”);

(c) share sub-division whereby immediately following the
capital reduction, each of the authorised but unissued
Consolidated Share of par value of HK$0.4 each would
be sub-divided into 40 Adjusted Shares of par value of

HK$0.01 each (“Share Sub-division”); and

(d) the credit arising from the Capital Reduction would
be applied towards offsetting the accumulated losses.
The balance of the credit (if any) after offsetting the
accumulated losses would be transferred to a distributable
reserve account of the Company which may be applied by

the Company.

(ii) On 15 August 2024, the Company raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$30.5 million before expenses by way of a rights
issue for a total of 254,528,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.12
per rights share on the basis of two (2) rights shares for every
one (1) existing share held by the qualifying shareholders on the
record date. Details of the results of the rights issue were set out

in the announcement of the Company dated 14 August 2024.

The net proceeds from the rights issue, after deducting direct
expenses of approximately HK$1.6 million for the rights issue,

were approximately HK$28.9 million.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital contribution
from shareholders in relation to interest-free loans
granted by the shareholders. The amounts are
estimated by discounting the nominal value of their
non-interest-bearing loans to the Group at current
market interest rate for similar financial instruments.
An early repayment of interest-free loans represents
a reduction in contribution from shareholders and
reduces capital reserve accordingly.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus comprises the unconditional waiver of
loans and advances by shareholders of the Company
and the Group’s former subsidiary.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(w).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the excess of cash
consideration paid for acquisition of additional
interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries over the
decrease in the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests of HK$102,000 (2023: HK$102,000) in prior
years.

27. EX KR (H)
(b) fEM21EEHR AR

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

160

(c)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as all liabilities excluding deferred tax,
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of
reporting period was as follows:

27

ERXRfHE (&)
(c) BEXEE

AEBEREAZARBEREBR
1 BE an I BR 75 2 (B AR BT 10 £ [ i 4R
MZKFRBEERAEHERE
REASEFBELLEEB 28
| SR EI R A EAM
EEEE R NG Y

AEBEBELEMHELARBEHRE
BEEERE RERSBRROEKE
MT AR o B EEKTFRER
W2 BRI R 2 i e R R 2
REGFE YEEEERREZE
EHERRBELAE-

AEENCRABETGFEEELRL
KRERE BEEBARAEE 3L
mE KPEEEHFRIERERE
BRBE(TERREEREBE)RRE
REeEEY KHEERNBEMN
BREmER -

RBESHRNERABERFEEE
REEEMT

2024 2023

—E-MEF T =F

HK$°000 HK$"000

FET FET

Net debt BERFE 4,432 10,066
Capital B 24,416 (4,561)
Debt to capital ratio BEE AL X 0.18 (2.21)
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

28.

(c) Capital management (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an ongoing basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

(d) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2024, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$Nil (2023: HKS$Ni).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables and loans and interest
receivables. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

162

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its operation because these
customers consist of a large number of customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The impairment assessment is
based on the Group’s assessment of historical credit loss
experience of the existing debtors and all available forward-
looking information, including but not limited to the
expected economic conditions. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group has a concentration of credit risk as 28%
(2023: 9%) and 69% (2023: 13%) of total trade receivables
were due from the largest customer and five largest
customers respectively. For the new segments, the Group
has a concentration of credit risk as 16% (2023: Nil) and
20% (2023: Nil) of total trade receivables were due from
the largest customer and five largest customers respectively.

The Group used estimated loss rates based on ageing
for classes with different credit risk characteristics and
exposures, and the estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
from the billing date.

(i)  Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. i EREERESFBIT AN

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREE (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) () JFEYWERF (&)
The following table provides information about the TREHEEBEAREE R ER
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade RRAHEG 2 EERRKXE
receivables: HEEEB B
2024
—E-ME
Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
BH¥Y
B3 REAE EEEA RERE
HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
Current (not past due) E (K@) 0.96% 832 (8) 824
Less than 1 month past due BEHLR—{EA 4.01% 538 (21) 517
1 to 3 months past due BE-z==fA 11.26% 213 (24) 189
3 to 6 months past due BB=ZEA 18.72% 537 (101) 436
6 to 12 months past due BEAETZ{A 45.93% 189 (87) 102
More than 12 months past due ~ #EH+ @A £ 100.00% 4 (4) =
2,313 (245) 2,068
BEEGEBRERERAERRA A 163
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

28.

MBEREEREMIARN

FE (&)

(a) EEmEE (&)
(i) JEWFE (E)

2023
—T-=F

Expected Gross Net
average carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

EHTH
BEx FHAE BEAE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TET FHT
Current (not past due) e (RaH) 0.71% 487 (4) 483
Less than 1 month past due BHLRN—@EA 0.77% 508 (4) 504
1 to 3 months past due BE-==A 0.89% 996 (9) 987
3 to 6 months past due A=z~ EA 1.02% 335 3) 332
6 to 12 months past due BEAE+ AR 1.15% 274 (3) 271
More than 12 months past due ~ #H+ @A £ 100% 3,935 (3,935) -
6,535 (3,958) 2,577
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(CONTINUED)

(1)

28. I EMEERSBMIAALN

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEmE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) (1) JEWAE (#&)
Expected loss rates are based on ageing for classes HHEBEENABEIAREE
with different credit risk characteristics and exposures, [ B 5 R R Wik A 2R B B BR
and the estimated loss rates are estimated based on RARER FHAEBEBEEDE
historical observed default rates over the expected E"Fﬁlﬁlﬁ% X TE B R AR
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward- SERENRMGE  WIR K
looking information that is available without undue EEINLBRZBRANBE N
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by —M% BIRIIE M E R ETTA
management to ensure relevant information about B-EBRETHBNOMERE
specific debtors is updated. S LAREAR B B E R AR
FEREER B &
Movements in loss allowance in respect of trade EWER 2 BEEEZ S
receivables are as follows: ™
Trade
receivables
FE W BR X
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2023 R-—T-=F—-F—8 3,891
Impairment loss recognised B RREE 18 67
At 31 December 2023 and RZFBZ=F+ZA=+—HBEK
1 January 2024 —EZNMFE—-H—H 3,958
Deregistration of subsidiaries B LN =FNC (3,875)
Impairment loss recognised EmRAEERE 162
At 31 December 2024 R-_T-_WFE+-_AF=+—8 245
No significant changes to estimation techniques or RSB et A AR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. EEImEHEEARER-
BEETEBREREBRERA 165
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

166

(1)

Other receivables, loans and interest
receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of an asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Other receivables, loans and interest
receivables (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group's ECL model for the other receivables, loans

and interest receivables is as follows:

Category
5l

Definition of category

HRER

28.

BHEBEEREMIAR
FE (%)

(a) EEmEE (&)
(ii)  EMEEW - JEWE K
FLE (&)
£ B B 0 LA R R - B
WEFREFBEZEREES
BRAMEKBEZBREHZ
T

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

FHFERERECRAEE

Stage 1

IR

Stage 2

B2

Stage 3

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired upon origination.

EERR 8 ¥ 5 W LA & R 3R KR g
MERESEBRIRBREEREZER -

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired.

BEERR B Y] 2 R AR L IR K08 18 0
WAREREERE AR -

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

MELHZEEZHARKRBRESREED
NEEZ -ALZEEN NRBRIER
HIREERE -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the

Group's exposure to credit risk arising from other

receivables and loans and interest receivables are set

out in notes 15 and 16 respectively.

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

RERRT_BEARNBEROENHZA
BEMAB 2 HERESEBEEAS -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised

EReoHEHER(IRRAKTEREE
ZEERER) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the
gross carrying amount

R HMBHBIEL ERERN 0 #
B (IR #B4E) MIEBRMAEAA EF &
W s o

B BARE B E E b & W KA
REBKERRFEMEARZZ
CERBZE-—THERE
D RIERHEE15%16 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. i EREERESFBITAAD

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEmEE (&)
(i) Other receivables, loans and interest (i) BEAMEW  EWE KR
receivables (Continued) F8 (#)
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest EWER KA E BT &8
receivables are as follows: U
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ER 1 EPLEE EE] 2 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TR FHT
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-8-H S 4,908 99,640 104,548
Repaid during the year RENEE - - (2,932) (2,932)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBRFE = (4,908) (92,867) (97,775)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZBZ=%F+_A
1 January 2024 =t-RAk-Z-_m%E
—A—H - - 3,841 3,841
Transferred to other receivables B4 % H i fE U 30 - = (3,841) (3,841)
At 31 December 2024 R-E-MF+_A
=+—-H - - - -

By class at 31 December 2023 2275

RZBZ=%+ZR
=t+-H
- Loans receivable -EWER - = 3,841 3,841
— Interest receivables —EYFIE - - - -
- - 3,841 3,841
168 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. i EREERESFBIT AN

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F1E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EEREE (&)
(i) Other receivables, loans and interest (i) BRI ERE KR
receivables (Continued) FlE (&)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL HEEHEEBBEREE &
allowances is as follows: ElaR)is UM
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FIEE FRE EE] - @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL AL A FEL
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=f5-A-H - - 99,640 99,640
New originated MEE - 2,704 - 2,704
Repaid during the year RERER - = (2,932) (2,932)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB LA = (2,704) (92,867) (95,571)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZZ=F+ZA
1 January 2024 “+-HE-Z-mE
—A—H - - 3,841 3,841
Transferred to other receivables REXNDHEEZH 4
during the year (Note 15) FEW R (HiaE15) - - (3,841) (3,841)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_MF+=A
=+—-H = = = =
By class at 31 December 2023 ?’Eﬁﬁi’ﬂ]
“BZ=f+ZH
_'I' =
- Loans receivable -EWER = = 3,841 3,841
— Interest receivables —EWHE - - - -
i} - 3,841 3,841
No significant changes to estimation techniques or RS EE - et A AR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. EEmHBEEAREE-
BELTEEREREBRGR QA 169
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

170

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
cash and cash equivalents, and deposits. The Group
accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing
for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In
calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category
of receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28. IBEREEREMIAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)) mEELEE (&)
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRINTAEB BB EREE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the HRZHBTERNIEA  DERE
Group's financial liabilities, which is based on contractual RIAARBBRReRE (BEEBF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments ANEFEZNENT SN RF
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on B AIRBHREHRZBITHEST
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the B)ARAEEMEREERNTRZ
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: &xFAH:
2024
—EomE
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
Amount cash flow On demand 2 years
BAREE —FRIHR BR—F
FHE RERELE BEX BOREAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TExT TER TER
Trade and other payables FE T R R % L A FE £ 3R 5,527 5,527 5,527 -
Lease liabilities HEAME 526 536 536 -
Interest-bearing borrowings My B 15 3 740 850 850 -
Amount due to a director EN—NEEERK 2 2 2 -
6,795 6,915 6,915 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

BHEBEEREMIAR
FE (%)

(b) “EBEZEE (&)

2023

—TC-=F
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
Amount cash flow On demand 2 years
BAIRAREE  —FNIHK SR—F
FEHE RensgE REX BLRMWEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL TET FHT
Other payables H e 3K 846 846 846 =
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,283 1,340 804 536
Interest-bearing borrowings it S8 3 790 932 932 =
Amount due to a director BN —NEEERK 2,852 2,852 2,852 =
5,771 5,970 5,434 536

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from lease
liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings,
which are issued at fixed rate, expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out below.

172 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
Annual Report 2024

(c) FFEmER
AEEZHEAREIEXRAAER
ERMEAER  ELBRSAEE
BRIDTEMNERR -EEREE
ZNAREZFEEABIMT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the

reporting period.

28.

BHEBEEREMIAR
FE (%)

FIEEB (&)

FIEME

TR S A H R A SR B 8 1
A IEL N

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=fF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERFE R =
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
TER THEL
Fixed rate borrowings: EEER
Interest-bearing borrowings fit 18 5K 30.0% 740 18.0% 790
Lease liabilities HEER 5.0% 526 5.0% 1,283
1,266 2,073
Currency risk (d) E#¥mEE

The Group's business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and RMB. The management
considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

BELEREREREEERAA

AEBEEBEHREEELBFEIN
BLTRAREIE - EEER/A
SEYERHERINNERR B
RBOHEE WA - BERAXYH
NEMBEB 2EEREE K
£ B B AL NS SR TR - A1
EEBERMERBREERERTE
RZBE RERINE R -
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28.

29.

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(e) Categories of financial instruments

BHEBEEREMIAR
FE (%)

(e) ZRTAHEF

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Financial assets SHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost LEENATRZ S MEE 39,576 6,320
Financial liabilities o =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  IREE K AVIEE v SR A& 6,795 5,771

(f) Fair value measurement
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29.

AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

(f) A -FETE
REBERK ARSI BHEKAARINEZ ©
MTHEZEREMERER T _MF
F_B-=F+-A=+-—RH2Z2
FEHITEERAER-

EXBELTRZRER

(a) TEEEANEHH
AEBEBEBABHMEEM T
SHIBBZENARREEREAR
M REOFT B BB 2 BB T & = 5 B
BEZ A FHEMT

2024 2023

—E-MEF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Short-term employee benefits FEHEERT 4,430 4,117
Post-employment benefits B2 1@ A 122 128
4,552 4,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(b) Material related party transactions
The Group has not entered into any material related party
transactions during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

(c) Balances with related parties
The Company’s balances with related parties are disclosed in
the Company’s statement of financial position (note 32(a)).

30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event happened after the reporting period.

2. EXRBEEIRGRER (&)

b) EAXBEFTXS
HE_Z-_NFEER-ZTE-_=F+=
B=Z+—BLEFE AEBWEE]
TEMEAEERIRS-

(c) BIFEL B 246
AARBEBAERAEBR SRR
KRRz BRI ZEE (M
32(a)) °

30. EMBREE
BEMEREEEEAEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
unless otherwise stated.

31.

LEp= NG|

(a) R=ZBE-WFEFR-—FE=-=F
t-A=E+—HZEFENE
ATE--
TREHBULEEES EEXL
BEETEFE I NBRARZEH
B-BRIBBZAMN FERND ZE
RIE LA -

Country of Particulars of
Incorporation issued and
Name of Company and operation paid-up capital Proportion of effective ownership interest Principle activity
ERALR BETRER
DEER EEfEER RAGFE EREERESILA TEER
2024 2023
“EomE i a3
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
HE Gf: EES &
KanHan Technologies Limited Hong Kong 363,636 shares - 100% - 100%  Provision of software platform
(note (vi) (HK$7,200,000) services
BEMBRBRAR (M) i 363,636/ {7 REFHT AR
(7,200,000 %)
First Surplus (notes (i)&(vi) BVI 10 shares of US$1 - - - 60%  Investment holding
each
First Surplus ( #72£() R () RERUES 10REREE RERR
(Ed:li9)
Mooff Games Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - - - 60%  Development and provision of
(notes (i) &(vi)) (HK$10,000) mobile data solutions and
related services
Mooff Games Limited E 10,0008 B 17 RERREBDHERR
()R ) (10,000% ) FERIBERS
Side Quest Limited (notes (ii) &vi)) ~ Hong Kong 3,020,000 shares - - - 60%  Development and provision of
(HK$4,510,001) mobile data solutions and
related services
Side Quest Limited (#7z2(i)&(v)) — E# 3,020,0008 & 17 REREEEDUBRER

(4,510,001 7)

Smart City Technology Limited Hong Kong 12,000 shares -
(notes (ii) &(vi)) (HK$1,010,000)
BEHTHEBRAR i 12,0008 B 13
(Wt Rw)) (1,010,000 )
176 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited

Annual Report 2024

TR RABRE

= 60%  Development of mobile games
and applications

HETREBRER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. B2~ & (&)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) RZE-_NER_-_FE_=F
December 2024 and 2023 (Continued) tZA=+—HZEEHE
NEjFHE (&)
Country of Particulars of
Incorporation issued and
Name of Company and operation paid-up capital Proportion of effective ownership interest Principle activity
EMAILR BEARAR
INGES EEMEER BRAFHE EREERESILA TEER
2024 2023
“EomE ZRC=F
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B k3 HE A%
Top Banana Limited (notes (ij) &vi)) ~ Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) - - - 60%  Development of mobile games
and applications
BEBRRA (W#)RWm) E 1R H (1%Ex) REFHERRER
HIRSHEEERERARA PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Sales of products
(notes (iii) &vir)
HIREHERERERAA PE AR 110,000,000 HEEm
(32 i) R vir) )
MNEIETUFERERAT PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Advertising e-commerce
(notes (i) &(vii)
INEIEFUFERERAT HE 1,000,000% 7T EETAR
(32 i) R vir) )
NMNEERTREERRARAR PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Advertising e-commerce
(notes (iii) &(vii)
MNESEFERBRERAR  HE AK1,000,0007 ESETES
(B i) i) )
RREKEREYRRERAHE PRC RMB510,000 - 51% - - Sales of products
(notes (v) &(vii))
BRERKEZHRENNHERAF HE AR%510,0007 HEER
(W) &)
MNERFEFHEERLA PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Advertising e-commerce
(notes (iii) &vii)
MNERFEFHEARLA E AR 1,000,0007 BEBTESE
(Baz i) Rvii) )
BEELEEREERERFGR QA 177
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BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. B AT (&)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) R—ZE-_NER_-_FE_=F
December 2024 and 2023 (Continued) t-A=+—HZFEHE
NEjFHE (&)
Country of Particulars of
Incorporation issued and
Name of Company and operation paid-up capital Proportion of effective ownership interest Principle activity
EMEILR BEARAR
NGES EEMEER BRAFE EREERESILA TETER
2024 2023
ZEomE ZRCZF
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
HE k3 H#E A%
IMyEREELERERAT PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Advertising e-commerce
(notes (iii) &vii)
NG EREEZERERAA E AR 1,000,000 REETRSG
(i) R vii) )
BEUEREERAR PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% - - Sales of products
(notes (iv) &(vii))
BEUBRREERAR E AR #1,000,0007 HEER
(Wt (i) R i)
MM EENRBEERA PRC RMB670,000 - 67% - - Sales of products
(notes (iv) &(vi))
MR EIREERAR HE AR %670,0007 HEEm
(i) R(vi)
MNEFEENREERAR PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100% = - Sales of products
(notes (iv) &(vii))
MG A EEDRRERAA TE AK1,000,0007 HEEm
(Ha (i) R(vi)
MM RARERERERAF PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100% - - Sales of products
(notes (iv) &(vii))
MM RARERERERAT HE A& %1,000,0007 HEER
(H (i) k(i)
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REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_ZT_-_NF

T-A=t—RLEE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The subsidiary was deregistered on 31 December 2024 (see note
31(b)).

The Group has lost control over these subsidiaries since the Group
deregistered First Surplus, which was the holding company of
these subsidiaries.

These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 2023
and started their operations during the year ended 2024.

These subsidiaries were incorporated and started their operations

during the year ended 2024.

The subsidiary was acquired by the Group on June 27, 2024.

Incorporated as a limited liability company under local jurisdiction.

Registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC
law.

(b) Deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries
On 31 December 2024, the Group deregistered two BVI
subsidiaries, Viva Star International Limited (“Viva Star”)

and First Surplus. Upon the deregistration of First Surplus,

the Group lost its control on First Surplus and its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as “First Surplus Group”) and ceased

the operation of the Mobile games and applications with
effect from 31 December 2024.

31. ffB L A (&)

&

(a)

(b)

ELEEEEREEBER QA

R-CEBE-_AFR-_F_=4F
+-A=+—HAZETEHB

RAalFE (&)

Hiet -

(i) ZHBATGR T _-_WE+ =
A=Z+—HBH#ExMm (M
31(b)) °

(ii) BEASEREAMZERBRRAZ
22 B% A RIFirst Surplusit - REEE
KREHZEMB R AR

ZEMBRAAIRBE_T_=F1t
FEFMAY IRBEE-_T_N
FILFERIREE-

(i)

ZEMBRARANRBE T _WEF L
FEAMARILILFIGEE -

(iv)

vy, ZHBRAAR-_ZT-_WF KA

= B A Y -
vi) RIS EARA PR L AE
RAR-
vi)  REFEAREMANEBELE
AR L &R & A A

R-B-_MOFE+-_A=+—H 'K
CEEOHEEMREREE &
E KB A aViva Star International
Limited ( [Viva Star]) ) KFirst
Surplus 7 f 88 51 Mt First Surplus
% N B K = E #iFirst Surplus
R EHMTEBAE (FE [First Surplus
EE|)zEGE BT _WF
TZA=ZTHBRIEFREER
FEFRH EE -
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BE_Z_HNF+_A=1+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. B~ 7 (&)
(b) Deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries (b) BHFMRLEEHEB LA
(Continued) (%)
On deregistration dates, the aggregate net liabilities of RESEEMBE S 2EME R AR
these subsidiaries at the completion date comprised of: TR A EFEERE:

First Surplus

Viva Star Group Total
First Surplus
Viva Star £8 HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Analysis of assets and liabilities HEALZEFENEER
over which control was lost: BENDN:
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEED - 5 5
Other payables and accruals Hofth & X R FEET OB (2,630) (13,429) (16,059)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEEBERE (2,630) (13,424) (16,054)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEMBARKE,
subsidiaries, net (B8])F8
Cash consideration ReRE - - =
Net liabilities disposed of BEHERBFH 2,630 13,424 16,054
Non-controlling interests SRR R = (5,370) (5,370)
Release of other reserve upon disposal {1 & I £ b E b % 8 - (102) (102)
Waiver of amounts due from Viva Star A% EUViva Starz 18 (2,585) - (2,585)
Waiver of amounts due from First B\ B UtFirst Surplus
Surplus HIH - (13,250) (13,250)
45 (5,298) (5,253)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMBATMEES
subsidiaries ik
Cash consideration received BERReRE = = =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HERE K
BeEEY - (5) (5)
= (5) (5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 1. B AR (&)
(b) Deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries (b) BHEFMRLEEHB LA
(Continued) (#&)

On 14 December 2023, the Company entered into a sale RZZE-_=F+=-A+m@T@A "

and purchase agreement with a third party to sell the entire
interest in Major Worldwide, and to assign to the purchaser
all the debts due from Major Worldwide and its subsidiary
(together the “Major Worldwide Group”) to the Group at
a consideration of HK$6,000,000. The principal activity of
Major Worldwide is investment holding and its subsidiary,
AP Finance, was principally engaged in provision of money

Z’»‘L\\jﬁﬁ BE=ZFFNEEW
% A H EMajor WorldwideZ &
HopE e R&m B 5 EEE KMajor
Worldwide & i@ A 7 (51 A
( TMajor Worldwide®% & | ) #9 Bt
BE® R {EH6,000,000% 7T e
Major WorldwideR) + Z ¥ #% &%

lending business up to September 2021. As a result of the Ak mMEMBARIRBH B E
ERERUEREE BEE-ZT
Z—FhhARLE-HRZ-ZZTZ=F
FTZATHBEMEE  AEEE X
= ¥fMajor Worldwide B 12 i 4 o

disposal on 14 December 2023, the Group has lost control
over Major Worldwide.

On 21 June 2023, the Group disposed of Forever Integrity RZEZ=FA=Z+—8 4%
Limited and its subsidiary (together the “Forever Integrity B HEEFREREAFR DA RE
Group”), which were insignificant subsidiaries. The MBBAR (REA([EFMELEE

business operation and revenue of Forever Integrity Group E]) ZERQRRAFEAWNEA
were unfavourably affected by the continuous outbreak Al-EMREEENEBLEERK
of COVID-19. In order to prevent further loss, the Group X B &R ACOVID-198 T
transferred 51% shareholdings in Forever Integrity indirectly M -AReHRE—DER"

AEBERAQAREEFNREMER
BAZ51%ME L1008 T B 4237
SREBETF—BIFE=FH-

held by the Company to an independent third party for a
total cash consideration of HK$100.

BEAEBEBEREEFSR QA 181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries

31. fHB 2 = ()
(b) BHEHRLEHE A

(Continued) (%)
On disposal dates, the aggregate net liabilities of these REERH ZEWBRARRTK
subsidiaries at the completion date comprised of: HHWRaEFREIE:
Major Forever
Worldwide Integrity
Group Group Total
Worldwide
58 EAREEH @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT FTHET
(Discontinued
operation)
(B#&I1E
K ET)
Analysis of assets and liabilities HEAEEFENEER
over which control was lost: =R {:oba
Deposits, prepayments and other e BARREAMRE
receivables Wk 49 46 95
Loans and interest receivables FEY & R T & 2,204 - 2,204
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEED - 52 52
Other payables and accruals Hofth B A 3% R FERT ROB (109)! (104) (213)
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of THEZE (&F)
B8 2,144 (6) 2,138
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBARKZEFE
net
Cash consideration ReRE 6,000 —* 6,000
Net (assets)/liabilities disposed of BHE(BE) /AR
kg (2,144) 6 (2,138)
Waiver of amounts due from Major # % Major Worldwide
Worldwide Group to the Group SEENEAERRE (71 = (71)
3,785 6 3,791
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from HEMBARFMERS
disposal of subsidiaries RA (F) B8
Cash consideration received BEWRERE 5,700 —* 5,700
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HERE K
ReEEY = (52) (52)
5,700 (52) 5,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries

(Continued)
* HK$100

A Below HK$1000

L excluding HK$119,518,000 amount due to the Group immediately
prior to the completion date of the disposal

The deferred consideration of HK$300,000 was settled in
cash by the purchaser on 14 March 2024.

The gain on disposal is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

1. B AR (&)

(b) HB#HZLMRE L ERE LA
(#&)
* 1007
A ER1,00058 7T

L TERFERENE B HEKAEMA
£E/119,518,0008 T £ 58

R AR (E300,0008 TE R
THE=A+NBEHEFARSE
%o

HEKRBEAAGSEER -
BELEREREREEERAA 183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Information of material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”)

(i)

31. fHB L A (&)
(c) EXFEREZ ([FERE
# /) &H

The following table lists out the information relating (i)
to Ma VB Mk EIn £ W EHE B R A 7] which has material
NCI and which is included in the sales of products

segment of the Group. The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts

before any inter-company elimination.

TRENEBESBEAS
IR 2 A BRI R A
MBEERARZER it
AREBZEREE DB
THHBENBBEERAF
RIS AT 2 S %8 -

2024
—E-mE
HK$'000
FTET
NCI percentage FEREEA DL 49%
Non-current assets FERBEE 33
Current assets mENE B 1,187
Current liabilities Vi 2 B=N (1,269)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE =
Net liabilities BEFE (49)
Exchange reserve for the year FEELFE (2)
Carrying amount of NCI FEEIRE S R A (25)
Revenue Wz 561
Loss for the year FEERE (139)
Total comprehensive expense THEMAXBE (141)
Loss allocated to NCI DR E IR E B (68)
Exchange reserve allocated to NCI 7B = FEIE R B 1
Cash flows used in operating activities, net K& EBMAZ RS REFE (412)
Cash flows used in investing activities, net ®EZFFAMAZEEREFHE =
Cash flows generated from financing METBMBZREREFR
activities, net 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Information of material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”) (Continued)

(i)

The following table lists out the information relating

31.

MR (&)
(c) EXFEREZ ([FERE

) EH (&)

(i)

to MM AL £ Y B R A 8 which has material NCl
and which is included in the sales of products segment

of the Group. The summarised financial information

presented below represents the amounts before any

inter-company elimination.

TRE2JEBHERBEASF
mRRES 2 MMALEEDR
REBRRBIZER AR
SEzERBEN T
BBERBERTRRMBY
$HAT 2 S5 o

2024
—E-mE
HK$'000
FTExT
NCI percentage A DL 33%
Non-current assets FERBEE -
Current assets mENE B 616
Current liabilities mE B & (165)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE -
Net liabilities BEFE 451
Exchange reserve for the year FEELFE -
Carrying amount of NCI FEERE S R E 150
Revenue Wz -
Loss for the year FEERE (25)
Total comprehensive expense >ERMZERE (25)
Exchange reserve allocated to NCI DEBFIERERELFE -
Loss allocated to NCI 7L FE IR AR R = s 1R (9)
Cash flows used in from operating KEEBMAZREMNEFE
activities, net (70)
Cash flows used in investing activities, net REEHFAZR S REFEE (477)
Cash flows used in financing activities, net BEEBMAZREREFE -
BEEGEBRERERAERRA A 185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

186

31.

(c) Information of material non-controlling

interest (“NCI”) (Continued)

(iii)

The following table lists out the information relating

to First Surplus Group which has material NCI and

which comprise the mobile games and applications

operating segment of the Group. The summarised

financial information presented below represents

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

First Surplus Investment Ltd was deregistered on 31

December 2024.

MEAR (&)
(c) EAHZREZ ([HERE
) EH (&)

(i)

TREJNNEEHREBEE NI
12 P B 28 Z First Surpluste &
ZER BHEHMBELRE
EOFHEBIERKLE D
B-THHBERMERT
A A A $ 88 AT 2 & B o First
Surplus Investment LtdE 7
—ZE-_ME+-R=+—H
BEH T -

2024 2023
—E-NF —E-Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
NCI percentage FIERERB DL 40% 40%
Non-current assets EREBEE = =
Current assets MBEE - 5
Current liabilities BB E - (13,417)
Non-current liabilities EREEE = -
Net liabilities BEFE - (13,412)
Carrying amount of NCI FEERR R R EE = (5,365)
Revenue & - =
Loss for the year FEERE (11) (1,982)
Total comprehensive expense THEMZBE (11) (1,982)
Loss allocated to NCI DR EIEIEREREE (4) (793)
Cash flows used in from operating & & /E&FTH 2
activities, net RemEFRE (11) (7)
Cash flows used in investing KEEBAAZ
activities, net ReREFRE - =
Cash flows used in financing BMEEBTAZ
activities, net WEmEFHE - =
Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Acquisition of a subsidiary

31.

R AR ()
(d) WiE— KA A

On 27 June 2024, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party to purchase the 51%
interest in '8 BB K EIRAEWEHE AR QA The acquisition
had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities

on the date of acquisition:

RZEZWFSAZ+EB &%
EEF=-FIVESHa ABE
ERBKREREVRRARRAZ
51%HE %5 o W R 3 7N & B R U RE B
HzEERBBEENATHE:

HK$'000
FTET
Consideration RE
- Cash paid —2NE2 -
Intangible assets — trademark BVEE -—BE 33
Trade and other receivables JE LS BR SR % H h FE R 133
Cash at bank RITHRE 88
Trade and other payables JE < B 5k K2 HL b JE 1< 3R (272)
Total identifiable net liabilities AHERLEEFE (18)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: KBELEZHE:
Consideration transferred BHEERE =
Less: non-controlling interests (49%) B IEERR R (49% ) 9)
Add: recognised amount of net liabilities 1 FIEAEGBFHEICHRLE
assumed 18
9
Cash inflow on acquisition: W g 2 IR & OF R
HK$'000
FTET
Purchase consideration settled in cash RS HEBENRE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEWERERBEESEY 88
Cash inflow on acquisition Wig 2 BEemA 88
BELTEEREREBRGR QA 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

32. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 32. X AR ZHMKEER

(a) Statement of financial position

(a) B BRI H*

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRAIZIKE - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UK BT BB & R 3R IE - =
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze B R REAE KK
receivables 4,070 314
Loan receivable fEUR B 3 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 21,054 572
25,124 886
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ! 18,552 20,826
Amount due to a director B —RIEEE R 2 2,852
Interest-bearing borrowings Bt B 18 3K 740 790
Other payables and accrued charges — H i E H N B & 2,963 493
22,257 24,961
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AE)FE 2,867 (24,075)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AEB)FH 2,867 (24,075)
Capital and reserves BEARK#E
Share capital A& A< 3,818 50,906
Reserves s (951) (74,981)
Total equity/(capital deficiency) B (EXREH) BE 2,867 (24,075)
188 Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited

Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILFEE

32.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 32. XA R ZHHKER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Details of changes in the Company’s individual (b) ZEREEXNELXR #E1EE
components of capital and reserves during the HMEZEEFHBEUT
year:
Share Share Capital Capital Accumulated
Capital  premium reserve surplus losses Total
BRE ROEE EXRE  EXEH 2 ER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL THET THET
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=f
—-B-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (437,643) (1,377)
Loss and total FEBBELRE2E
comprehensive expense  fI ¥ B85
for the year - - - - (22,698) (22,698)
At 31 December 2023 HRZZE==
and 1 January 2024 TZA=Z+-HK
—ZMmEF
—-A-H 50,906 381,490 2,261 1,609 (460,341) (24,075)
Loss and total FEBBLR2E
comprehensive expense B 4%
for the year - - - - (1,943) (1,943)
Capital reduction upon ~ BAEAKHEIRER
capital reorganisation (49,633) - - - 49,633 -
Rights issue e 2,545 27,998 - - - 30,543
Rights issue expense iR E A - (1,658) = = = (1,658)
At 31 December 2024 RZ-F-NF+=A
=+-H 3,818 407,830 2,261 1,609 (412,651) 2,867
(c) Contingent liabilities (c) HXAEE
At 31 December 2024, the Company has no contingent F:?:Ei‘f‘f A=+—RH'%&
liabilities (2023: Nil). RAYEAREBE(ZE =4
ﬁ) 0
BEEGEBRERERAERRA A 189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_A=+—HILEE

33.

190

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the consolidated financial statements. The material accounting
policy information is set forth in note 2. The Group believes the
following critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Impairment loss on non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation or amortisation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any; goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators exist that may affect the
recovery other asset’s carrying value (except for goodwill); (2)
whether the carrying amount of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, and in the case of value in
use, whether the net present value of future cash flows
are estimated base upon the net cash inflows expected to
be generated from continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including estimation of future cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets, intangible
assets and goodwill), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment test.

Wouxi Life International Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 R 3k B RE

A

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_HWNF+_A=+—HILFE

33. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets

(c)

No deferred tax asset in relation to unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In case where
taxable future profits are generated, an understatement
of current year accounting profit due to the unrecognised
deferred tax asset may arise, which deferred tax asset would
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the period in which such event
takes place.

Impairment allowances on financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for financial assets
at amortised cost by assessing the ECLs. This requires the
use of significant estimates and judgements. ECLs are based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period. Where the
estimation is different from the previous estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of financial
assets at amortised cost and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

33. R EFT R A E (&)

(b) EEZHEEE

(c)

B R B A M TR IR & 1B M AT 0 R
EEZRARNETHEEEDR
RAEMBARRRPER - HELRE
ARBCR R E A BT aE g HIR D5t
AEER A RERELENIREE
FTEE®MSEMABER - EIT
MT BEERBREESNEREBER
FEMEAMNEDE R EMEE KSR
THER

BHBERLTBEZEHEE
Z B

AEBEBBFAEEREEER 3
BREBERATEZEREERTE
BRE - ULBRTEEREANMGTR
HEr-FHEEBERRASE 2B
EEEBERLR IREEBAZ
HERRARRRE AREBLE
BRARBAZHEFELABME -
At A RIREAEE BRER
BRERBHEKNAGAEZEREE
ZHEREE EMEEGAESHHME
ZREEE -
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EIEHERE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“E-mE —F-=fF Tz ZT=Z-F CZTZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT TET TET FHE
RESULTS E4
Revenue from continuing and FERBERILEEEE 2 e
discontinued operations 57.313 24,493 21,436 21,031 31,420
Loss before taxation bR A5 1R (5,425) (9,435) (22,076) (86,771) (93,155)
Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (AX) /8 (166) 100 105 (1,215) 5,158
Loss for the year FEEE (5,591) (9,335) (21,971) (87,986) (87,997)
Attributable to: AT AL :
Owners of the Company EUNSIEZEN (5,510) (8,542) (21,869) (83,337) (71,611)
Non-controlling interests R ER (81) (793) (102) (4,649) (16,386)
(5,591) (9,335) (21,971) (87,986) (87,997)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEERAR
Total assets BERE 61,745 8,703 19,570 35,678 159,519
Total liabilities BREE (37.329) (13,264) (14,796) (8,796) (44,688)
(24,416) (4,561) 4,774 26,882 114,831
Total equity attributable to owners AN EIEA AEHESAE
of the Company 24,291 804 9,346 31,375 114,690
Non-controlling interests RS 125 (5,365) (4,572) (4,493) 141
24,416 (4,561) 4,774 26,882 114,831
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